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UK and Eire
Our Sunlight business is a market leader serving hotels and restaurants, 
healthcare, commerce and the public sector, with flat linens and garments. 
It operates through 44 plants with 7,800 employees.

£268.4m
Revenue (2004: £263.3m)

£34.3m
Operating profit* (2004: £38.4m)

12.8%
Operating margin (2004: 14.6%)
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Operations 2006 priorities

Markets

2

1

1. UK

2. Eire

Hotels and restaurants

Industry and commerce

Healthcare

Public sector

Management of current market volatility

Target pricing opportunities to offset cost increases

Maintain programme of operational improvements

Continue programme of bolt-on acquisitions

Investors

69 Principal subsidiary
undertakings 

69 Advisers 
69 Financial calendar 
69 Shareholder information
69 Website 

*Before exceptional items and amortisation of 
 customer contracts

Operating profit* £m

2001 37.5

2002 40.9

2003 38.4

2004 38.4

2005 34.3

Company Country of incorporation

UK and Ireland
The Sunlight Service Group Limited* England
Spring Grove Services Limited Republic of Ireland
Davis Finance Limited* England

Continental Europe
Sophus Berendsen A/S Denmark
Berendsen Textil Service A/S* Denmark
Berendsen Tekstil Service AS Norway
Berendsen Textil Service AB Sweden
Berendsen Safety AB Sweden
Berendsen Beteiligungs GmbH Germany
Berendsen Textiel Service BV The Netherlands
Berendsen Textile Service Sp.z.o.o. Poland
Modeluxe Linge Service SA France
S Berendsen OY Finland

*Owned directly by The Davis Service Group Plc

All principal subsidiary undertakings are 100% consolidated.
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Principal subsidiary undertakings

Investment Bankers Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein
Stockbrokers Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein
Solicitors Slaughter and May, London
Auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, London
Registrars Lloyds TSB Registrars, The Causeway, Worthing, West Sussex BN99 6DA

Enquiries relating to shareholders, such as queries concerning notification of change of address, dividend payments and lost share certificates,
should be made to the company’s registrars. The company has a share account, management and dealing facility for all shareholders via Lloyds TSB
Registrars Shareview. This offers shareholders secure access to their account details held on the share register to amend address information and
payment instructions directly, as well as providing a simple and convenient way of buying and selling the company’s ordinary shares. For internet
services visit www.shareview.co.uk or the investor relations sections of the company’s website. The Shareview Dealing service is also available by
telephone on 0870 850 0852 between 8.30 am and 4.30 pm Monday to Friday.

The best way to ensure that dividends are received as quickly as possible is to instruct the company’s registrars to pay them directly into a bank 
or building society account; tax vouchers are then mailed to shareholders separately. Dividend mandate forms are available from the registrars. 
This method also avoids the risk of dividend cheques being delayed or lost in the post.

Advisers

Shareholder information

Financial information about the company including the Annual and Interim reports, public announcements and share price data are available 
from the company’s website at www.dsgplc.co.uk, which also contains further information about the group and links into the websites of 
its subsidiaries:

Sunlight Service Group www.sunlight.co.uk
Sophus Berendsen www.berendsen.com

Website

Interim results announced September

Final results announced February

Ordinary interim dividend paid October

Ordinary final dividend paid May

Annual general meeting 25th April 2006

Financial calendar
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This is Davis
The Davis Service Group is a focused European textile maintenance business 
with market leading positions in most of the countries in which we operate. 
As a focused business we are able to mobilise our resources to drive our 
strategies in our core area of expertise.

Our Sunlight business in the UK and our business in Ireland are able to provide a
nationwide service across all product areas. We have a strong base in Scandinavia,
Northern and Central Europe through the Berendsen business which provides 
an excellent platform for expansion of our service range and for geographical
expansion to other markets.

Our focus on operational excellence and service delivery to our customers have
resulted in strong reputations in our markets and these create opportunities to 
win new business contracts and to make targeted bolt-on acquisitions. 

Continent
In our Berendsen business we are leaders in Scandinavia, with a strong position in healthcare 
in Germany and a competitive position in garments in the Netherlands. We provide textile
maintenance services in 10 countries with 71 plants, employing around 7,000 people.

£393.3m 
Revenue (2004: £388.2m)

£61.7m 
Operating profit* (2004: £56.4m)

15.7%
Operating margin (2004: 14.5%)

2005 Financial summary

Operations 2006 priorities

Markets

1. Austria

2. Denmark

3. Estonia

4. Finland

5. Germany

6. Netherlands

7. Norway

8. Paris

9. Poland

10. Sweden

Hotels and restaurants

Industry and commerce

Healthcare

Public sector

Target organic growth opportunities 
in each country

Maintain programme of operational improvements

Continue programme of bolt-on acquisitions

Target profitable opportunities in new territories

2

3

7
10

5

1

6 9
8

*Before exceptional items and amortisation of 
customer contracts
**8 months

Operating profit* £m

2002** 25.0

2003 48.3

2004 56.4

2005 61.7

4
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Board of directors

Christopher R M Kemball 59‡ Christopher was appointed to the board in January 1999 and subsequently
became non-executive chairman in May 2005. He is a vice chairman of Hawkpoint Partners Limited, 
the independent corporate advisory firm, and a non-executive director of WS Atkins plc and Control Risks
Group Limited.

I Roger Dye 54‡ Roger has been a UK public company director since 1987 and was appointed finance
director in August 2000, subsequently becoming chief executive in May 2005, following the retirement of
John Ivey. He has been a non-executive director of Nestor Healthcare plc since 2004 and is chairman of its
audit committee.

John D Burns 61*†‡~ John was appointed to the board as a non-executive director in 1987. He is
managing director of Derwent Valley Holdings plc. He is also a consulting partner of Pilcher Hershman 
& Partners and a former chairman of the Westminster Property Owners Association. 

Philip G Rogerson 61*†‡~ Philip was appointed to the board in June 2004 and became senior independent
director in May 2005. He is non-executive chairman of Carillion plc, THUS Group plc and Aggreko plc, and a
non-executive director of Northgate plc. Until February 1998 he was deputy chairman of BG plc (formerly
British Gas plc) having been a director since 1992. 

Kevin Quinn 45 Kevin was appointed finance director in May 2005, following the appointment of Roger Dye
as chief executive. He has previously held senior finance positions within Amersham plc. Prior to 1997, 
Kevin was with PricewaterhouseCoopers, latterly as a partner in its Prague office, having also worked in the
United States of America and France.

Per H Utnegaard 46*†‡~ Per was appointed a non-executive director of the company in January 2005 and
was wholesale director of Alliance UniChem plc until Spring 2005. Before this, Per was Director General of
Swiss Federal Railways Cargo, having previously held various senior management roles within Danzas-Deutsche
Post and the TNT Group. Born in Norway, Per was educated in the United States of America. He has worked
and lived in Scandinavia, Central and Southern Europe and in the United Kingdom. He speaks five languages.

Top to bottom, from left to right:
Christopher R M Kemball
I Roger Dye 
John D Burns 
Philip G Rogerson
Kevin Quinn
Per H Utnegaard

Board committees
* Audit committee 
† Remuneration committee 
‡ Nomination committee 
~ Identified by the board as an 

independent director
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As already mentioned in the Interim Statement, the past year has been
one of significant change for the group. With the sale of Elliott in May,
we have completed our reorganisation into a focused European textiles
maintenance business with strong market positions on the Continent
and in the UK. At the same time, we announced the return of 
£151 million of capital to shareholders, which was effected in August. 
In June, we refinanced our bank facilities on substantially better terms
and conditions and extended them to 2012.

There have also been key changes at board level, with Roger Dye and 
I moving respectively to Chief Executive and Chairman in May and 
Kevin Quinn joining us as Finance Director from Amersham in May. 
We are supported by a strong team of non-executives in Philip Rogerson,
John Burns and Per Utnegaard.

The board has addressed the future strategy of the group. The markets 
in which we operate are mature and therefore relatively low growth. 
In order to increase our top-line growth, we are cautiously expanding 
the breadth of our activities within the textile maintenance sector, both

organically and through bolt-on acquisitions. Our focus is on improving our service to customers without
compromising our strong operational and financial controls. Geographically, we are concentrating on Europe.

Results and dividend The UK market has continued to be very challenging this year, especially in the
second half. The Continental European business, on the other hand, has had another good year and coupled
with lower financing costs and a lower tax rate has resulted in a satisfactory set of results.

Revenue from continuing operations in the year was £661.7 million (2004: £651.5 million), an increase of
2%. Operating profit from continuing operations before exceptional items and amortisation of customer
contracts (adjusted operating profit) was £91.7 million compared with £91.0 million last year, an increase of
1%. With the benefit of the substantial reduction in the net interest charge from £13.3 million to £7.2 million
and a lower effective tax rate of 28.8% for our continuing businesses (2004: 30.3 %), adjusted earnings
per share rose from 26.5 pence to 31.7 pence, an increase of 20%. 

In 2005 we implemented a significant restructuring programme in Germany and we have recognised a
charge of £7.1 million for the cost of this restructuring. We also received cash in the year of £5.0 million
owed to our Berendsen subsidiaries on asset sales prior to our acquiring the business in 2002. These items,
together with a profit on property sales of £0.3 million, are shown as exceptional items. Amortisation of
acquired customer contracts amounted to £2.0 million and operating profit after exceptional items and
amortisation of customer contracts was £87.9 million (2004: £94.4 million). 

Earnings per share, including the discontinued operations of Elliott and its profit on sale and the exceptional
items, were 66.8 pence compared to 23.3 pence in 2004. The net proceeds of the sale of Elliott amounted to
£160.4 million and in August 2005 we returned £144.4 million to shareholders by way of a B share scheme.
We announced on 24th February 2006 that we will redeem all remaining B shares for a further £6.5 million
on 2nd May 2006. In addition, we made a contribution of £23 million into the UK pension fund to cover the
past service liabilities of Elliott and HSS staff. 

The board is recommending a final dividend of 11.80 pence, which together with the interim dividend of 
5.50 pence paid in October 2005, gives a total of 17.30 pence, an increase of 5% on last
year. The total dividend is covered just under two times by the adjusted earnings per share,
taking into account the contribution of the Elliott business prior to disposal of 33.10 pence.

Free cash flow generated was £64.6 million, £62.8 million for our continuing business, 
which is £3.4 million above 2004. The group ended the year with net debt of £214.2 million
compared with £250.5 million at 31st December 2004 and with gearing of 57%, the same
as last year.

Development In 2005 we completed our strategy of disposing of the non-core
businesses. Following the sale of HSS Hire Service Group, completed in January 2004, this
year we completed the sale of Elliott Group Limited (Elliott) to a management buy-out
vehicle backed by TDR Capital for £166 million. Profit on the sale of the Elliott business
net of transaction expenses, was £68.0 million. We now have a focused European textile
maintenance business with leading market positions in most of the countries in which
we operate.

In Continental Europe we continued our focus on margin enhancement with cost control
and operating efficiency gains, further improving margins from 14.5% last year to 15.7%
this year. We have positioned ourselves for future growth by investing in our sales forces
and by broadening our service offering in our existing markets. We have also continued to
make targeted acquisitions, which expand our market reach, making acquisitions and
acquiring contracts in a number of countries, including Germany, where we acquired the
healthcare contracts of Rentokil Initial in the North and East of the country. Although
revenue growth has been difficult in most of our markets in Continental Europe, we are
looking for opportunities to grow profitably while at the same time driving efficiency.

Chairman’s statement

2001

Operating profit* £m (continuing operations)

35.7

*Before exceptional items and amortisation  
of customer contracts

2002 64.4

2003 83.5

2004 91.0

2005 91.7

2001

Group turnover £m (continuing operations)

238.7

2002 494.7

2003 657.7

2004 651.5

2005 661.7

Christopher Kemball Chairman
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Within the Sunlight business, our strategy has been to secure increased volumes and improved operating
efficiency and we have rationalised our operating base in response to market conditions. Management’s 
focus is on working with our customers to improve our service offering and to ensure that pricing reflects 
the cost of delivering that service, particularly in the light of the significant increases in wage and energy 
costs of our business. Rentokil’s withdrawal from UK textiles, announced in January 2006, should result in
some opportunities for us over time. We continued with our two year IT investment programme to provide
integrated systems to support operations, customer relationships and business development and we will 
make further investments to help drive operating efficiency, particularly in our healthcare plants.

Return of capital to shareholders Following the sale of Elliott, the extraordinary general meeting on 
15th August 2005 approved the board’s proposals to return £151 million of capital to shareholders with a 
5 for 6 share consolidation. In 2005, we repaid £144.4 million to shareholders and have announced to the
remaining B shareholders our intention to repay the remaining £6.5 million on 2nd May 2006.

Other financial matters We have made cash transfers of £23.0 million to the principal Davis UK pension
fund in respect of past service liabilities of Elliott and HSS staff. Our post tax deficit on pensions for the
group at 31st December 2005 was £57.2 million compared with £71.2 million last year. We continue to see
reduction of the pension liability as a priority and therefore intend to contribute at least £5 million annually 
for the next five years to the UK fund, with the aim of funding the past service deficit. 

In June 2005, the group concluded the refinancing of its banking facilities by signing a £420 million revolving
credit facility with an initial term of five years with eight banks on attractive commercial terms, including 
a reduced margin compared to the previous agreement. The group ended the year with net debt of 
£214.2 million compared with £250.5 million at 31st December 2004. 

Board and management This is my first Annual Report to shareholders as Chairman of the board, 
having succeeded Neil Benson following his retirement at the end of April 2005. Roger Dye succeeded 
John Ivey as Chief Executive and Kevin Quinn was appointed as Finance Director following Roger’s
appointment. We have made a number of changes in our board committees with Philip Rogerson taking 
over Chairmanship of the audit committee and Per Utnegaard the Chairmanship of the remuneration
committee. I chair the nomination committee and Philip has been appointed the senior independent 
director. John Burns continues to serve as non-executive director and the board benefits significantly from
his experience with the group.

Since January 2005 the Berendsen business in Continental Europe has been managed by Christer Ström
(Managing Director). He and his management team have delivered a strong result for the year and are well
placed to take this business forward in line with the group’s strategy. In the UK, Steve Finch (Managing
Director) and his experienced team have continued to restructure and innovate against the challenges they
face in the UK market. 

We have nearly 15,000 employees in the UK, Ireland and in Continental Europe, and the expertise and
dedication at all levels have been vital in ensuring that we retain the commitment to service delivery across 
the organisation that is so valued by our customers. On your behalf, and on behalf of the board, I thank 
them all for their individual contributions. The commitment this year of all our employees, management 
and staff alike, has been tremendous.

Outlook In the year ahead, the UK will remain challenging, especially in the short-term.
On Continental Europe, we are targeting further good progress in 2006, while continuing
to pursue acquisition opportunities. Overall we expect to deliver a satisfactory outcome 
for 2006.

Christopher Kemball Chairman

Chairman’s statement continued

2001

Dividends per share pence

2002

2003

2004

2005

2001

Adjusted earnings per share  
pence (total group)

30.2

2002 30.3

2003 29.9

2004 31.9

2005 33.1

14.12

14.85

15.60

16.50

17.30
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Focusing
We are a focused textile maintenance business with two operating 
divisions, Sunlight in the UK and Eire and Berendsen in Continental 
Europe. This allows us to mobilise our resources to drive our strategies 
in our core areas of expertise.

Textile maintenance. We focus on delivery of our customers expectations by continually investing in our operations.
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Since the sale of Elliott in the first half of 2005, Davis has become a
focused European textile maintenance business with leading positions in
most of the countries in which we operate. As a focused business we are
more able to mobilise our resources to drive our strategies in our core
areas of expertise. The strength of our Sunlight business in the UK and
our business in Eire enables us to offer a leading service to our customers
throughout each country across all our product lines. We have a 
strong base in Scandinavia, Northern and Central Europe through the
Berendsen business, which we acquired in 2002, and this provides an
excellent platform for expansion of our service range to existing markets
and for geographical expansion into other markets by organic means or
through acquisition. We are also working on the opportunities that are
emerging from the wider membership of the European Union.

In most of the markets in which we operate, our customers have realised
the benefits of outsourcing over many years and the outsourced service
model is now well established. However, we continue to innovate and
improve the service value to our customers and to move the focus from

products to providing service solutions. In this way, we work with our customers to try to ensure that we
obtain a fair recovery of the costs of providing that service. 

Our services Through our Sunlight business in the UK, our Spring Grove business in Ireland and Berendsen
in Continental Europe, we are a leading provider of textile maintenance services to the hotel and leisure,
healthcare, commercial, industrial and public sectors through the provision of flat linen, workwear garments,
mats and maintenance products for facilities. We are primarily a textile rental business where we acquire and
own the flat linen or garments and rent these to customers on service rental contracts of varying lengths. 
We are responsible for laundry services as well as the repair, maintenance and replacement of the textiles
when required. This is a logistically complex business which requires experienced management and strong
systems to operate successfully on a large scale.

In our hotel and restaurant division we provide flat linen (including bed linen, tablecloths, napkins) as well as
towels. We also provide workwear for hotel and restaurant staff including chefwear. We provide systems and
processes for managing these textiles within our customers’ facilities. 

For our healthcare customers, we provide linen rental together with management systems for ward linen and
other patient related products. In addition, we have a comprehensive sterile textile and procedure pack rental
service for use in the operating theatre, which is serviced from specialist clean room operations. We continue
to expand the range of products and services we offer to the sector.

Our workwear business provides light and heavy duty workwear for the different industrial and service
sectors, including safety clothing such as reflective high visibility wear. We also provide services to the public
sector. Increasing legislation in health and safety as well as upgrades to best manufacturing practice are
positive drivers in this important sector of our business.

Our facilities range of products and services are designed to improve hygiene and remove dampness and dirt
from the workplace, hotels and restaurants. This range includes washroom services as well as industrial wipers
and mats.

Market overview Our business is robust but faces challenges. Our markets are competitive and recovery
of cost increases is difficult to a differing degree in most territories; throughout the business we have 
seen significant increases in our energy costs which affect both processing and distribution operations. 
Our management teams are working hard to drive for efficiencies that can mitigate the overall impact 
of these cost increases. These conditions are not new, however, and we have experienced management
teams that have encountered them before. Our focus on operational excellence and service delivery to our
customers has resulted in strong reputations in our markets for our Sunlight, Spring Grove and Berendsen
businesses. This creates opportunities to win new business contracts while our strategy of making targeted
bolt-on acquisitions with good leverage into our existing operations is able to deliver margin improvement
and additional value for shareholders. 

Our Sunlight business Our Sunlight business is a market leader serving hotels and restaurants, healthcare,
commercial and public sectors with flat linens and garments. It operates through 40 plants in the UK and four
in Ireland (operating as Spring Grove Services) and serves over 50,000 customers with over 7,800 employees.

The hotel market in the UK continues to grow and offers further volume opportunities for the future. 
But the nature of the market, with its concentration on large hotel groups, who have themselves been 
subject to merger and takeover activity in recent years, creates a difficult pricing environment. Our strategy 
is to seek to improve and innovate our service to enhance pricing wherever possible and to continue to 
drive operational efficiency so that we are the lowest cost provider of service. 

Sunlight is the largest service provider to the healthcare market in the UK. We continue to develop additional
services into this market, which offers opportunities for volume growth as a large proportion of the market
remains with NHS Trusts and has not yet been outsourced. This market demands significant experience to 

Operating review
Our business

Roger Dye Chief Executive
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Leading
Our Sunlight and Berendsen businesses have excellent reputations in 
their markets which create opportunities to win new business and to 
make targeted bolt-on acquisitions.

Healthcare products range from standard bed linen to technically complex surgical textiles.

Hotel linen improvements can help our customers reduce the time
taken to service a room.

Workwear is increasingly used in a wide variety of sectors.
Here shown in a printworks.
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provide the breadth of service at the quality standards required by the NHS Trusts. The market is based on
tendered contracts with prices indexed during the period of the contract. Prices on re-tendering are thus
rebased to prevailing market rates and are impacted by the actions of central government.

The UK workwear market continues to follow the move out of employment in the industrial sector towards
the service economy with cleaner working conditions. It is a market that continues to provide service
opportunities, however, with a significant proportion of new accounts sold each year being new to workwear
rental. We continue to reposition our resources and to invest in our sales teams in what is essentially a sales
driven business. The move from heavier soiled industrial garments to lighter garments for the service sector,
however, makes this an increasingly price competitive market where margins remain under pressure.

Our Berendsen business Our Berendsen business in Continental Europe provides textile maintenance
services in ten countries with 71 plants employing around 7,000 people. We are strong in Scandinavia, 
in particular in Sweden and Denmark where we have a broad range of services to hotels and restaurants,
hospitals, commercial, industrial and public sectors. We provide flat linen as well as garment rental and
facilities products in these territories. We have a growing business in Norway with a focus on garment and
facilities business, having significantly restructured our flat linen operations in recent years. In Germany we
have a strong position providing service primarily to the healthcare sector with a relatively small position in
the garment market and in the Netherlands we have a leading position in garment services. We have a fast
growing business in Poland, where we have operated for some ten years and are a leading market provider
in the rental workwear and mats sectors. In late 2005, we entered the Finnish market through the purchase
of two local businesses. In addition, we have our own garment manufacturing based in Estonia and a
company selling garment and personal protection equipment, as well as operating retail shops’ in Sweden. 

Our hotels and restaurant business for Continental Europe is focused on Scandinavia. As a business sector, 
we expect that volumes will grow long term and we will drive further operational improvements through the
additional volume. However, this is a market that has excess capacity generally and significant improvement in
margins is challenging to achieve. 

The healthcare sector offers long-term growth with limited volume fluctuation and wide product ranges in
Scandinavia where we have completed a significant restructuring since the acquisition of Berendsen in 2002.
In Germany and Austria we have a good market position in the regions in which we operate but the business
in Germany has been under significant pressure as a result of the government policy to reduce healthcare
costs. In 2005 we started our operational and structural improvements in Germany by reducing staffing levels
at our plant near Hamburg and redistributing volumes to other plants.

Our workwear business is well established in Scandinavia and the Netherlands. Although these markets have
been traditionally based on manufacturing, where employment levels are in decline, they continue to offer
opportunities to move into new sectors. Our business in Poland is growing strongly. We have a relatively 
small position in the German workwear market. 

Our facilities business is well established and profitable. We have a strong position in our mats business in
Denmark, Sweden and Norway and we continue to invest in this sector of our business with recent new
service introductions. Customer markets are highly fragmented – it is a sales driven business and consequently
we continue to invest in our sales force.

Operating review
Our business continued

Germany

Austria

Netherlands

Poland

Estonia

Eire

UK

Hotels and 
restaurants

Healthcare Workwear Facilities Sales/production

France

Denmark

Sweden

Finland

Norway

Breadth and depth of our European operations
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This has been a challenging year for our UK and Eire operations. Revenue for the year increased by 2% to
£268.4 million (2004: £263.3 million) but adjusted operating profit at £34.3 million was down on last year
(2004: £38.4 million).

The more significant part of this profit decrease occurred in the second half of the year and followed the
adverse impact on the London hotel market from the bombings in July. Management took prompt action to
mitigate the impact of these unexpected events as well as continuing to operate in a competitive and price
driven market place. With the significant rises in energy and fuel prices and also in labour costs as a result of
minimum wage legislation, management continued to improve efficiency. However, these improvements were
insufficient to prevent a reduction in the adjusted operating margin from 14.6% in 2004 to 12.8% in 2005. 

While the hotel and restaurants sector saw volume growth in the first half of 2005, trading in the second 
half was significantly depressed. Although hotel occupancy gradually returned towards the end of October,
weekend occupancy from the tourist market continued at a lower level. In addition, hotels continued to
rationalise their linen stocks and this meant that volume did not recover to the same extent as occupancy. 
We ended the year with revenues broadly unchanged compared to last year, having been some 3% up at 
the half year, with profitability significantly impacted by the lower volumes in the second half.

The healthcare division achieved solid growth in revenue with some significant new contract wins in 2005.
Re-tendering of existing contracts continued to put pressure on pricing as the NHS Trusts faced greater
Department of Health scrutiny in managing their deficits. In the third quarter we also experienced some
volume fluctuations as Trusts reacted to these pressures.

Our workwear business continued to face the biggest impact of pricing and increased costs, and gains were
difficult to achieve in a competitive market. The ongoing shift from heavy duty industrial products to lighter
service oriented products has continued to put further pressure on sales. However, we have strengthened our
sales force to win new business in this important sector. 

In Eire, our businesses faced similar trading conditions to those experienced in the UK but management has
succeeded in growing the business albeit at lower margins. We have recently acquired processing facilities in
Northern Ireland and a strong position in the Province.

Management has taken steps to improve the quality, efficiency and reach of the business organically and
through acquisition. During the year we completed improvements at our Merton and Wednesbury plants. 
We made acquisitions totalling £13.3 million (including the acquisition in Northern Ireland). We acquired 
Hall & Letts, a direct supplier to the hospitality sector, supplementing this with the acquisition of a small
workwear supplier. In December we completed the purchase of a workwear facility in East Anglia, which 
has allowed us to consolidate and extend our service in that region. Since the year end, we have spent 
£13.5 million acquiring further operations. Our IT investment programme continued and we expect to
substantially complete the new systems implementation in operations and customer support in 2006.

We expect the UK market to remain challenging, especially in the short-term. Hotel volumes will be uncertain
until Easter when the level at which the London tourist traffic returns can be assessed. In healthcare,
notwithstanding the attractive longer-term opportunities, we continue to monitor the potential impact of
budget pressures in the NHS. In workwear, we are seeing more price competition.

In January 2006, Rentokil Initial announced the closure of its UK linen and workwear operations. We are
actively marketing our high quality services to its customers where we can secure appropriate pricing for the
service offered. While we do not expect this to provide a significant profit contribution in 2006 we do expect

it to deliver benefits from 2007 onwards.

Cost pressures, particularly in energy and fuel and wages, will remain. However, the
acquisitions we have made, together with our continued focus on operational efficiency
and plant restructuring, will go some way to reducing the impact of these on our business. 

Operating review
UK and Eire 

Operating profit* 2005

£34.3m

Delivered good operating efficiency.

2005 achievements

Made further bolt on acquisitions.

Continued to make good contract wins 
in all sectors.

*Before exceptional items and amortisation  
of customer contracts
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This was another successful year for our operations on the Continent. Revenue was up 1% on last year at
£393.3 million (2004: £388.2 million) while adjusted operating profit increased by 9% to £61.7 million from
£56.4 million in 2004. Revenue benefited from a favourable impact of foreign exchange by £3.7 million, and
adjusted operating profit by £0.6 million, compared to 2004 exchange rates. 

We saw only marginal improvement in the economies of Continental Europe in 2005 and trading conditions
were similar to those experienced last year. However, against this backdrop, we were able to increase our
adjusted operating margin from 14.5% to 15.7% as a result of our continued focus on efficiency, productivity
and cost control.

In Scandinavia there was little growth overall in our core rental business although we continued to make
changes to our customer base by not renewing contracts with unprofitable customers at the same time 
as bolt-on acquisitions. This has enabled us to deliver further profits growth in the region in the year. 
We believe that we are well placed to benefit from economic growth when it emerges in these countries. 

We were disappointed with the lack of progress in our workwear business in Holland, which is seeing its
traditional manufacturing customer base decline. However, we continued to achieve good contract growth 
in the market overall, but the benefit was offset by the overall impact of more competitive pricing and
reducing numbers of garment users in our existing contracts. During the year we expanded our sales force
and, although this adversely impacted our profitability in the short-term, we expect this to improve in the
current year.

In Germany, we took the first steps to restructure our operating base with a workforce reduction at our 
plant near Hamburg in the first half of 2005. We also acquired healthcare contracts from Rentokil Initial.
Faced with a sluggish federal economy, the healthcare market was particularly challenging with government
policy to reduce costs and overcapacity in the market place, principally by more effective control of patients’
stays in hospitals and clinics. However, we were pleased that the German management achieved equivalent
profitability to 2004 at acceptable margins. We have continued to take steps to improve efficiency with the
announcement to close two of our smaller plants.

Our business in Poland is growing rapidly and at good margins. We opened a second plant in the south of
Poland and plan to open a further plant in Poland during 2006. The progress we are making in this market
has been very encouraging.

Our business in France is small and had another disappointing year. With only one plant operating in difficult
trading conditions, there was a small loss. 

Our direct sale business in Sweden continued to perform well and saw good revenue growth in the year. 
Its manufacturing site in Estonia now supplies a significant proportion of the garments for new and repeat
rental contracts in Sweden and Denmark.

A fundamental part of our strategy is to seek bolt-on acquisitions, as these provide us with significant
potential for profit enhancement. In 2005 we acquired businesses and contracts in Sweden, Denmark 
and Norway and entered the Finnish market by acquiring two small businesses. The total cost of these
acquisitions, with our purchase of contracts in Germany, was £9.4 million. Since the year end, we have
acquired businesses and contracts for a further £6.2 million. We invested in our plant and IT infrastructure 
and we are introducing substantial new IT systems into a number of countries. We have upgraded the 
quality of our sales forces in particular in Denmark and Holland.

In the coming year, we are targeting further good progress at the trading level,
notwithstanding that the healthcare business in Germany continues to be a particular
challenge. We are seeing small levels of growth reappearing in Scandinavian countries 
and we continue to pursue targeted bolt-on acquisitions.

Roger Dye Chief Executive

Operating review
Continental Europe

Operating profit* 2005 

Delivered further margin improvement.

2005 achievements

Made further bolt-on acquisitons.

Expanded geographical coverage to Finland.

Service expansion in 2 countries.

£61.7m
*Before exceptional items and amortisation  
of customer contracts
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Improving
We are constantly seeking to improve the value of our service to customers, 
while improving shareholder value by managing our operations more efficiently.

Investment. Continued investment in computer-controlled sorting systems reduces manual handling costs within our workwear factories.

Customer Service. Providing automated on-site garment issuing systems helps customers to reduce costs, shown here in the Netherlands.
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The financial review should be read in conjunction with the Chairman’s
Statement and the Chief Executive’s Operating Review set out on 
pages 3 to 10 which contain comments on revenue, profit, earnings 
and dividends.

Basis of presentation The group has adopted International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as from 1st January 2005 and these financial
statements, along with the comparatives, for 2004 have been prepared
in accordance with these standards. As previously reported, there has
been little net effect on the group’s reported operating profits and net
assets, excluding the reversal of goodwill amortisation, and the adoption 
of IFRS has not had any impact on the fundamentals of our business,
strategy or future cashflows. 

A reconciliation of net assets and profit under UK GAAP to IFRS is
provided this year in audited note 34. In addition, separate parent
company accounts have been presented in accordance with UK 
GAAP. These are set out on pages 61 to 66.

Interest Net interest charged for the year was £7.2 million compared with £13.3 million for our continuing
business in 2004. The significant decrease resulted from a lower average net debt, reflecting the good cash
flow generation of the business, together with the proceeds of the sale of Elliott, which were held on deposit
prior to the return of capital to shareholders. In addition, we have benefited from the reduction in funding
costs as a result of refinancing the group in June 2005 on favourable terms. We expect to further benefit
from these reduced funding costs through 2006. 

Taxation The tax charge of £23.2 million compares to £25.4 million in 2004 with an effective rate of 28.8%
compared with 31.3% last year. This represents a rate of 28.8% on the profit before exceptional items and
amortisation of customer contracts compared to 30.3% in 2004 and benefits from a reduced tax rate in
Holland, Denmark and Austria. 

Discontinued operations On 25th May 2005 the group announced the sale of Elliott
for £166 million. The profit on the sale of Elliott of £66.9 million has been recorded, net
of transaction expenses.

The Elliott trading results have been disclosed in the consolidated profit and loss account
as a discontinued operation. Revenue was £52.5 million for the period of ownership on
which an operating profit of £3.9 million was achieved (£2.6 million after interest and tax,
equating to 1.3 pence per share). In 2004 revenue was £146.2 million for the 12 months
with operating profits of £17.8 million. In line with trends experienced in 2004, revenue
and profits in the direct sales and related service activities were depressed in the period of
ownership in 2005 with Elliott experiencing a shortage of orders from the public sector.

During 2005, the group received a payment of $15 million (£8.4 million) against the 
US element of the vendor loan notes from the sale of the HSS Tool Hire business.
The UK vendor loan notes of £12.5 million were also redeemed in full together with
accrued interest.

Cash flow Free cash flow generated was £64.6 million (2004: £74.3 million). Free cash
flow of our continuing textile maintenance businesses was £62.8 million compared with
£59.4 million last year. Net cash generated from operating activities in the period was
£219.5 million (2004: £227.7 million). 

Net cash generated from investing activities amounted to £10.8 million (2004: cash 
used of £38.8 million). This included £153.2 million from the disposal of Elliott, (excluding
the net debt assumed by Elliott) and receipt of the HSS vendor loan notes totalling 
£20.5 million. In addition, we received settlement of promissory notes and debts of 
£5.0 million owed to our Berendsen subsidiaries on asset sales made prior to our
acquiring the business in 2002. Capital expenditure on tangible and intangible assets 
for the year was £136.7 million compared with £142.6 million in 2004 and there were
proceeds from the disposal of fixed assets of £11.1 million in 2005 (2004: £19.1 million).
For our continuing businesses, excluding Elliott, capital expenditure was £129.4 million in
2005 compared with £124.0 million in 2004 with the increases related to linen purchases
and IT investments in the UK and investment in the new plant in Poland. We continue to
invest in our business and we intend making further new plant investments in Norway
and Poland in 2006 and keeping other site opportunities under review.

Net cash used in financing activities amounted to £144.6 million in 2005 (2004: 
£137.8 million) including the capital return to shareholders of £144.4 million.

Operating review
Financial review

2001

Gearing %

39

2002 91

2003 86

2004 57

2005 57

2001

Shareholders’ funds £m

236.0

2002 412.2

2003 476.2

2004 440.0

2005 376.3

2001

Dividend cover times

2.14

2002 2.05

2003 1.92

2004 1.92

2005 1.91

Kevin Quinn Finance Director
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Borrowings and gearing Borrowings at the year end was £214.2 million (2004: £250.5 million). An analysis
of the currency and maturity of debt is shown in note 17 to the financial statements on pages 45 to 46. 
Our debt is drawn under the new revolving credit facility for £420 million, which we signed in June 2005. 
This facility is available for an initial term of five years with eight banks on attractive commercial terms with
the option to extend for a further two years. The new facility provides a reduced margin compared to the
previous agreement. Since the year end we have entered into swap arrangements to fix the interest rate 
on B150 million of borrowings through to June 2010.

Pensions Actuaries to the group’s defined benefit pension schemes in the UK, Ireland, Sweden and Germany
continued to advise the respective Trustees of the group on the required funding rates. In total the group has
charged £6.5 million (net of curtailment gain of £3.9 million) for the year in respect of all pension arrangements
for staff. Following the sale of Elliott in May 2005, the group made a payment of £23.0 million to the company’s
UK pension fund in respect of past service liabilities of Elliott and HSS staff. It is our intention to contribute at
least £5 million annually for the next five years to the group’s principal UK fund with the aim of fully funding the
past service deficit remaining over this period.

Treasury policy The group uses foreign currency borrowings and financial instruments to finance its
operation and to manage the interest rate and currency risks arising from those operations and sources 
of finance.

The group’s strategy for financing its operations and managing the risks associated therewith is summarised
below.

Financing The group finances its operations primarily through the group’s banking facilities and cash
generated through its operations. In planning the maturity of debt, the group’s policy is to seek a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility.

In addition the group has overdraft facilities with certain clearing banks. The group’s UK current accounts are
subject to set-off arrangements covered by cross-guarantees and there is also a cash pooling arrangement
taking in the cash generated by the Berendsen businesses. 

All the group’s borrowings are unsecured.

The group evaluates potential sources of funding on a continuous basis with a view to obtaining alternative
sources where appropriate.

Interest rates The interest rate exposure of the group arising from its bank borrowings
has been managed by the use of interest rate instruments. The group has outstanding
swaps of £15 million and $25 million in respect of borrowings, which have now been
repaid, and which expire in July 2006. Since the year end, B150 million of borrowings
have been fixed using swaps in order to obtain a hedge against any future interest 
rate increases. The group’s policy is not to use derivatives for trading purposes.
Transactions are only undertaken if they relate to underlying exposures and should 
not be viewed as speculative.

Currency rates The majority of operations in the group bill their revenues and incur their
costs in the same functional currency. The group faces some currency exposure in respect
of the procurement of capital equipment. These risks are typically not material and, where
any transaction’s exposure is significant in the context of the trading company concerned,
a forward foreign exchange contract may be entered into by that company; this would 
be dependent upon the certainty of the exposure as to timing and amount and the
exchange rate at the relevant time. There were no such trading contracts outstanding 
at the year end.

It continues to be the group’s policy not to hedge foreign currency exposures on the
translation of its overseas profits to Sterling. Where appropriate, borrowings are arranged
in currencies so as to provide a natural hedge against the investments in overseas 
net assets.

Going concern After reviewing the group’s budgeted cash flows and having made
appropriate enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company and
the group have adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future.
For this reason, the directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

Kevin Quinn Finance Director

Debt by maturity

Capital expenditure table £m

Danish krone
Euro
Swedish krona
Sterling
Other

  

£m

198.6
115.3
12.0
5.8
0.1

331.8

%

60
35
4
1
–

100

Within 1 year
Within 1-2 years
Within 2-5 years
Over 5 years 

£m

3.7
2.7
2.8

322.6
331.8

%

1
1
1

97
100

Hire and rental inventory
Plant, machinery and vehicles
Land and buildings 

2005

98.0
32.3
6.4

136.7

2004

105.8
37.2
3.3

146.3

Debt by currency
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Introduction
The group’s corporate governance framework is aimed at ensuring an alignment of interests between shareholders and company management.
Within this framework, there is a clear separation of roles and responsibilities. The functions of governance are undertaken by the group’s
shareholders and by the board of directors who act on their behalf while the functions of management are delegated to the group’s Chief
Executive and his management team.

Role played by Shareholders
Shareholders play a key role in the group’s governance by electing the directors, by monitoring and rewarding their performance, and by engaging
in constructive dialogue with the board and senior management.

All directors are subject to re-election to the board every three years, with at least one third of the board retiring by rotation each year. The biographies
of each director can be found on page 2. We are putting into place new mechanisms to facilitate easier voting by our shareholders and, for the 2006
Annual General Meeting, we shall:
• enable all shareholders to vote electronically either via Crest or directly with our Registrars; and
• include a ‘vote withheld’ box on the Annual General Meeting proxy voting forms as recommended by the Shareholder Voting Working Group.

The Chairman, the Senior Independent Director (who is also Chairman of the Audit Committee) and the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee will attend the Annual General Meeting on 25th April 2006 and will be available to meet shareholders. 

Outside the Annual General Meeting, the Chairman of the board, Christopher Kemball, is responsible for ensuring that there is ongoing and
effective communication with shareholders. Philip Rogerson, the Senior Independent Director, is also available to shareholders if they have concerns
which contact through the normal channels with the Chief Executive, Finance Director or Chairman has failed to resolve or for which contact is
inappropriate. To that end, both individuals have made themselves available, when requested, for meetings with investors on issues relating to the
group’s governance and strategy. The issues discussed at these meetings were reported to the board and copies of relevant correspondence were
circulated to all directors.

Over 50 separate meetings have been held in 2005 with major shareholders in the UK, the US, Sweden and the Netherlands by either or 
both of the Chief Executive and the Finance Director. As expected, these meetings have focused primarily on the group’s trading operations and
immediate prospects. Following Roger Dye’s appointment as Chief Executive in May 2005, major shareholders also wanted to discuss the continuity
of the group’s strategy. Where significant views were expressed during these meetings they were summarised and circulated to all directors.

In December 2005 an operational review by the executive (including divisional management) and site visit took place in the UK for an invited group
of financial analysts and shareholders. Positive feedback was received following this event and it will be repeated in 2006, most likely at a location
within Continental Europe.

Role of the board and its relationship to Executive Management
The principal role of the board is to set the broad parameters within which the group seeks to further the interests of its shareholders and to
monitor the performance of the executives to whom it delegates the management of the business. However, although it does not interfere in the
day-to-day activities of the group’s senior management, the board does have a formal schedule of matters that are reserved for its own decision.
This schedule was reviewed and approved in May 2005 following the appointment of the new Chairman and new Chief Executive and includes,
among other matters:
• the establishment of the group’s overall strategy;
• major changes to the group’s capital, corporate or management structure;
• major investments, capital projects and contracts;
• major changes to the group’s financial reporting, internal controls and risk management;
• changes to board structure and membership;
• determination of the remuneration policy for directors and other senior executives;
• the division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive;
• approval of the terms of reference for all board committees; and
• approval of the group’s Ethics Policy and its policies on corporate social responsibility including health and safety.

The Chairman of the board, Christopher Kemball, is responsible for the leadership of the board and for ensuring a challenging and constructive
relationship between the Executive and Non-Executive Directors. Between board meetings there is regular interaction between the Group Chief
Executive and the Chairman and, where necessary, with other board members.

Prior to each board meeting an agenda, together with supporting papers, is circulated to directors to ensure they are supplied with all the
information required. Included with these papers are detailed monthly accounts, together with reports from the Chief Executive, Finance Director
and the Managing Directors of Berendsen and Sunlight. As part of this process, the board also reviewed and approved the group’s 2006 Budget.
After each board meeting, there is a comprehensive follow-up procedure to ensure that major actions agreed are completed.

Since their respective appointments in May 2005, the Chief Executive, Roger Dye, and the Finance Director, Kevin Quinn, have ensured that the
board is kept fully aware of business issues and prospects throughout the group. Both are Directors of Sunlight and attend monthly Sunlight board
meetings. They are also Directors of Sophus Berendsen AS and, as well as attending monthly Berendsen board meetings, they attend individual
Berendsen country board meetings by rotation, thereby meeting regularly the management teams of each national operation. The key issues raised
at these meetings are then brought to the attention of the board.

The senior management teams of both Sunlight and Berendsen have also met with the board twice each since May 2005. These full day sessions
have been very comprehensive and have given board members detailed insight into the operations of the Sunlight and Berendsen businesses, their
challenges and opportunities, and demonstrate the free flow of information and communication between the board and senior management
within the group. Similar presentations have already been scheduled for 2006 and it is also the board’s intention to review selected key business
topics with senior divisional management present at regular board meetings.

Corporate governance statement
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Composition of the board
Details of changes to the board are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 22. During the last two years there have been significant changes
made to the board including the retirement of the former Chief Executive and Chairman on 30th April 2005, the appointment of their
replacements, two new Non-Executive Directors and a new Finance Director.

In line with the revised provisions of the Combined Code, the board now comprises two Executive and four Non-Executive Directors (including the
Chairman). Their biographies reflect a breadth of skills, knowledge and business experience and the board considers that its programme of renewal
is now complete.

Independence of the board
In December 2005 the Nomination Committee performed a thorough review of the independence of the Non-Executive Directors. The Committee
concluded that all the Non-Executive Directors remain independent from management and provide a strong independent element on the board,
being free from any business or other relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise of their judgement.

To safeguard their independence, directors are not entitled to vote on any matter in which they have a material personal interest unless the
directors unanimously decide otherwise and, where necessary, directors are required to absent themselves from a meeting of the board while such
a matter is being discussed. The company has also purchased insurance to cover its directors and officers against the costs of defending themselves
if legal proceedings were taken against them and in respect of damages resulting from an unsuccessful defence of any such proceedings, unless
the director or officer were found to have acted fraudulently or dishonestly.

To strengthen the independence of the Non-Executive Directors and to enable them to more freely discuss the performance of the group’s
Management, the Chairman meets with the Non-Executive Directors at least once a year without the executives present.

The independence of the directors is further supported by the work of the Company Secretary whose appointment and removal is the
responsibility of the board as a whole. The Company Secretary, who is also secretary to the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees,
ensures that board procedures are complied with and provides advice on corporate governance and regulatory compliance. All directors have
unfettered access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary. There is also an agreed procedure by which directors can, where necessary
for the discharge of their duties, obtain independent professional advice at the company’s expense.

The board has also determined that any Non-Executive Director who has served more than nine years will be subject to annual re-election. 
John Burns will, therefore, be subject to re-election at the 2006 Annual General Meeting. The board has concluded that, following a formal
performance evaluation, his performance as a Non-Executive Director continues to be effective. He contributes significantly as a director through 
his individual skills and his considerable knowledge and experience of the company. In particular, as a serving Managing Director of a listed
company, his skills and expertise are complementary to the other Non-Executive Directors. He also continues to demonstrate strong independence
in the manner in which he discharges his responsibilities as a director. Consequently, the board has concluded that, despite his length of tenure,
there is no association with management that could compromise his independence and that therefore he remains independent.

Directors’ induction and training
During 2005, the induction programmes received by the new board members, Kevin Quinn and Per Utnegaard, included components tailored 
to their responsibilities. In the case of Kevin Quinn, this included visits to most of the countries in which the group has operations, as well as
introductory sessions with the group’s advisers, auditors and bankers. Per Utnegaard attended meetings with the Chief Executive, Finance Director
and other members of the senior management team.

The board has recently reviewed and approved a formal Induction programme for all new Non-Executive Directors covering matters such as 
the operations and activities of the group, the group’s key financial and non-financial risks, the role of the board and the matters reserved for its
own decision, and the responsibilities of the group’s board committees.

The Chairman of the board is also responsible for ensuring that all Non-Executive Directors receive training in order that they can appropriately
perform their duties. At the Non-Executive Directors’ meeting in November 2005, any further training needs were discussed and appropriate
actions put in place. Per Utnegaard, who joined as a Non-Executive Director during 2005, has already attended a number of technical 
Non-Executive Director training courses. 

As part of their ongoing development, Executive Directors are permitted to take up an external board appointment subject to the agreement of 
the board. Executive Directors retain any fees received in respect of outside appointments. Roger Dye is currently a Non-Executive Director of 
Nestor Healthcare, a company which works in UK public sector healthcare operations, an area of interest to the group’s operations.

Board and committee evaluations
In the last quarter of 2005 the board carried out a performance evaluation of the board, its three Committees and all of its individual 
directors. This was co-ordinated by the Chairman, with whom each of the directors met. The evaluation of the Chairman was undertaken 
by Philip Rogerson, the Senior Independent Director, through consultation with the other directors and the Chief Executive. The results of the
evaluation were initially discussed at the Non–Executive Directors’ Meeting on 22nd November 2005 and then presented to the board on
15th December 2005. The board has identified a number of actions from this evaluation that it has agreed to implement. They include that 
further interaction with divisional management through site visits would be desirable (especially in Continental Europe) and that there is a need 
to improve succession planning amongst senior management.

Attendance at board and committee meetings 
The board requires all directors to devote sufficient time to discharge their duties effectively and to use their best endeavours to attend meetings.
Apart from the Annual General Meeting, the board met 11 times during 2005. One of these meetings was the strategy review meeting during
October 2005. In addition, as referred to above, the Non-Executive Directors met without the Executive Directors on 22nd November 2005. 
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The three principal committees of the board are the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. The terms
of reference of these committees are set by the board and are available for inspection either from our group website or upon request from the
Company Secretary. The membership of these Committees, details of which are set out on page 2, is composed entirely of Non-Executive Directors
with the exception of the Nomination Committee upon which Roger Dye serves. 

The attendance of all individual directors at board and committee meetings for the year ended 31st December 2005 is detailed below. During
2005, all current directors attended all board and committee meetings held since the date they were appointed with the exception of
Per Utnegaard and John Burns who did not attend the Nomination Committee on 10th February 2005 although they provided their views
beforehand to the Chairman.

Board meetings – attendance
Directors’ attendance at board and committee meetings convened in the year ended 31st December 2005 was as follows:

Board Audit committee Remuneration committee Nomination committee

Current directors Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended

Executive directors
I R Dye 11 11 – – – – 1 1
K Quinn 9 9 – – – – – –

Non-executive directors
C R M Kemball 11 11 1 1 7 7 3 3
J D Burns 11 11 4 4 7 7 3 2
P G Rogerson 11 11 4 4 7 7 3 3
P H Utnegaard 11 11 4 4 7 7 3 2

Former directors
J C Ivey 2 2 – – – – 1 1
N W Benson 2 2 1 – 1 – 1 1
P E Smeeth 3 2 – – – – – –

The number of meetings ‘Held’ is defined as the number during 2005 that a director could attend either prior to his resignation as a director or subsequent to his appointment.

Report of the Audit Committee
Composition The Committee met four times during 2005 and from 1st May 2005 comprised Philip Rogerson (Committee Chairman), Per Utnegaard
and John Burns. Neil Benson and Christopher Kemball (Committee Chairman to 30th April 2005) resigned from the Committee on 30th April 2005.
From 1st May 2005 all members of the Committee are Non-Executive Directors and are considered by the board to be independent.

Representation from the external auditor’s, the Finance Director and the Group Internal Audit Manager attend each meeting at the request of the
Committee Chairman. At least once a year, the Committee meets with the external auditors without executive management present. From time to
time, the Committee Chairman also meets in private session with the Group Internal Audit Manager without any other member of management
being present.

The board considers that the committee has sufficient recent and relevant financial experience to discharge its duties. In particular, Philip Rogerson
is a Chartered Accountant and from 1992 to 1998 he was the Finance Director and then the Deputy Chairman of BG plc. 

Role and Authority The Committee’s principal function is to enable the board to monitor the integrity of the group’s financial reports and its system
of internal controls; to monitor the effectiveness of the group’s internal audit function; and to manage the relationship with the group’s external
auditors. The Committee’s terms of reference were reviewed and approved by the board on 27th May 2005 and are available on the company’s
website or upon request from the Company Secretary. 

Activities in 2005 During the last twelve months the Committee has:
• monitored the integrity of the company’s financial statements and 2005 preliminary and interim announcements having reviewed the significant

financial reporting issues and judgements contained in them;
• at an additional Audit Committee meeting on 27th June 2005, reviewed the group’s transition to International Financial Reporting Standards

(IFRS), including the group’s accounting policies under IFRS, and reviewed the announcement to be made outlining the impact of adopting IFRS
on the reported 2004 results;

• kept under review the effectiveness of the company’s internal controls and risk management systems;
• monitored and reviewed the effectiveness of the group’s internal audit function;
• approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of the group’s external auditors, assessed their independence and objectivity and the

effectiveness of audit processes;
• required that, with the exception of tax services, all non-audit services to be performed by the company’s auditors that exceed pre-set thresholds

be pre-approved by the Committee; and
• reviewed the arrangements in place for staff to raise concerns in confidence about possible wrongdoing in financial reporting or other matters.

The Audit Committee Chairman reports on the Committee’s activities at the following board meeting.

Report of the Remuneration Committee
Full details of the Committee’s composition, role and authority and activities are set out in the report on directors’ remuneration on pages 18 to 21,
which is subject to an advisory vote by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 25th April 2006.

Corporate governance statement continued
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Report of the Nomination Committee
Composition The Committee met three times during 2005 and from 1st May 2005 comprised Christopher Kemball (Committee Chairman), 
Philip Rogerson, Per Utnegaard, John Burns and Roger Dye. Neil Benson and John Ivey resigned from the Committee on 30th April 2005. Three of
the current five members of the Committee are regarded by the board as independent. 

Role and Authority The Committee leads the process for board appointments and makes recommendations to the board. The terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee were updated and approved by the board on 27th May 2005 and are available on the company’s website or upon
request from the Company Secretary. 

Activities in 2005 During 2005 the Committee’s main activities have involved the selection and appointment of a new Chief Executive and Finance
Director. For both positions, external consultants were used and the Committee interviewed a number of potential candidates. In view of the
number of changes to the board and the need for continuity, no external process was commissioned for the selection of Christopher Kemball as
Chairman during the year.

In addition, during the year the Committee has:
• evaluated the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the board;
• assessed thoroughly the extent to which current Non-Executive Directors remain independent and, in particular, the independence of John Burns

who has served on the board for more than nine years;
• considered the membership of the board’s sub-committees; and 
• reviewed succession planning for senior executives.

As Chief Executive, Roger Dye is responsible for ensuring that the operating companies’ boards are structured appropriately and that policies are 
in place to ensure suitable candidates, both internal and external, can be attracted should vacancies arise. During 2005, new appointments were
required in the UK and Germany.

Combined Code compliance statement
During 2005 the company undertook a thorough review of board procedures and compliance with the Combined Code on Corporate
Governance. The company complied throughout the year ended 31st December 2005 with the provisions of the Combined Code with the
exception of the following:
• although letters of appointment for Non-Executive Directors do require them to confirm that they will make adequate time available to fulfil 

their duties, not all of these letters specifically set out the expected time commitment. All Non-Executive Directors have, however, confirmed that
during 2006 they will make adequate time available (Ref:A.4.4); and

• the group’s whistleblowing system was only implemented throughout the group, with the exception of France, during the year. (Ref: C.3.4). 

Internal control review
The board has responsibility for establishing and maintaining the group’s system of internal control. The system of internal control is regularly
reviewed by the board. Internal control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate risk and can therefore only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The key procedures which the directors have established with a view to providing effective internal control as required by the Combined Code
(which have been in place throughout the year ended 31st December 2005 and up to the date of the approval of the Annual Report and
Accounts) are as follows:

Open culture The group considers that it operates a risk aware culture with an open style of communication. This allows problems and issues to be
identified early, in order that appropriate action can be quickly taken and any impact on the business therefore minimised. 

Continuing process of risk identification A continuing process has been established for identifying, evaluating and managing risks faced by the
group. Throughout the year, regular subsidiary management and subsidiary board meetings allow the organisation to recognise evolving risks,
respond quickly and implement procedures for reporting any significant control weaknesses. Details of any significant issues or control weaknesses
identified are communicated by the Chief Executive or Finance Director to the board. This process includes the maintenance of a formal Group Risk
Register which is currently reviewed on an annual basis by the Audit Committee prior to its consideration by the board.

Reports on internal control The board and Audit Committee requested, received and reviewed reports from executive and senior management, 
its advisors, internal and external audit.

Whistleblowing During 2005 the group has implemented a system by which staff may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible wrongdoing 
in financial reporting or other matters. The system is now operational throughout the group, except France as a result of data protection issues. 
Due to the diversity of our workforce the system operates in 22 languages. Procedures are in place to ensure issues raised are addressed in a
confidential manner. The Company Secretary is required to report to the Audit Committee bi-annually on the integrity of these procedures, the
state of ongoing investigations and conclusions reached.

Annual assessment Executive management presented reports to the Audit Committee and board in December 2005 and February 2006 to assist
the board with their annual assessment of the effectiveness of the group’s system of internal controls.

The board considers that the information that it receives is sufficient to enable it to review the effectiveness of the company’s internal controls in
accordance with the Turnbull Guidelines.

By order of the board

David Lawler Secretary
24th February 2006
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Report on directors’ remuneration
The report on directors’ remuneration contains the disclosures required by Schedule 7A to the Companies Act 1985 and has been prepared in
accordance with the Combined Code. The tables and accompanying notes on pages 19 to 21 have been subject to audit, with the exception of
the Share Price graph.

Remuneration Committee 
The remuneration committee (“the Committee”) comprises three independent non-executive directors and no director plays a part in any
discussion about his own remuneration. The Committee members consist of: Per Utnegaard (Chairman of the Committee since 1st May 2005), 
John Burns and Philip Rogerson. Christopher Kemball was Chairman of the Committee until 30th April 2005 and remained a member of the
Committee in order to provide support and continuity during the executive incentive review and resigned after its completion on 16th December
2005. Neil Benson was a member of the Committee until 30th April 2005. The Chief Executive is invited to attend meetings but may not take 
part in any discussion on matters concerning himself. New Bridge Street Consultants LLP (“NBSC”) is the appointed remuneration adviser to the
Committee and provides no other services to the company. 

The terms of reference of the Committee were reviewed and approved by the board in May 2005. The Committee’s role includes determining
the company’s policy on senior executive remuneration, considering and approving the individual salaries and other terms of the remuneration
packages for the executive directors and the Chairman, monitoring remuneration of other senior executives and setting an overall framework
for share schemes throughout the company. The terms of reference are available on the company’s website or upon request from the
Company Secretary. 

Remuneration policy 
The Committee’s policy is:
• to provide appropriate levels of remuneration to its senior executives, taking into account their experience, the size and complexity of their jobs,

relevant market comparative data and any material special factors which may arise from time to time; and 
• to ensure that a significant proportion of executives’ remuneration is determined by performance.

During the past year the Committee, with the assistance of NBSC, has completed a review of the level and structure of executive remuneration
which included benchmarking remuneration against a group of similarly-sized companies in the Support Services sector and also against a more
general group of FTSE 250 companies of broadly similar turnover, market capitalisation and internationality. The main finding of the review was
that the level of performance-related pay for company executives was below market levels. Accordingly, in order to align more closely executive
interests with shareholders and to ensure that the executives are suitably incentivised, the company’s remuneration structure is to be amended for
2006 as follows:
• the maximum potential annual bonus will be set at 60% of base salary with a requirement that a quarter of any bonus is deferred into company

shares for a minimum holding period of two years;
• subject to shareholder approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, executives will receive awards of performance shares under a new

Performance Share Plan (“PSP”). Awards granted under the PSP will be made in place of any further awards under existing long-term incentive
(including option) schemes. The Committee believes that performance share awards will offer a clearer link between company performance and 
executive reward. 

The remuneration package for executive directors and other senior executives for 2006 will therefore comprise a more appropriate mix between
fixed remuneration (annual salary, provision of a company car, life assurance, medical expenses insurance and retirement benefits) and variable
remuneration (annual bonus and, subject to shareholder approval, performance share awards), whereby at a target level of performance,
approximately a third of the total package would comprise variable remuneration.

Salaries 
Salaries for executive directors were reviewed and the following annual salaries are effective from 1st January 2006: Roger Dye £410,000 and 
Kevin Quinn £226,600. 

Retirement benefits 
Roger Dye has a personal pension arrangement to which the company makes payments equivalent to 30% of salary. Kevin Quinn has a personal
pension arrangement to which the company makes payments equivalent to 20% of salary. Life assurance cover of four times salary and permanent
health insurance of up to 75% of salary are also provided. 

Short-term performance bonuses 
The maximum annual bonus for 2006 will be 60% of base salary for senior executives, including the executive directors. A quarter of any bonus
earned must be invested in company shares for two years and will normally be forfeited if the executive leaves during that period. 80% of the
bonus will be determined by demanding targets relating to group headline profits or divisional profit performance as appropriate to the individual
role. The balance of the bonus will be based on the achievement of specific financial and developmental targets relevant to the individual. 
Normally no bonus will be payable under either part of the plan unless targeted profit is achieved for the year.

Long-term incentives 
Subject to shareholder approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, senior executives, including the executive directors, will receive in
2006 awards of performance shares under the PSP. The Committee will have the ability under the PSP to make performance share awards worth
up to 100% of base salary each year (with a 200% limit in exceptional circumstances such as in the case of recruitment or where there are acute
retention needs). However, the Committee intends to limit individual awards in 2006 to no more than 50% of salary.

Report on directors’ remuneration 
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Awards granted under the PSP will be subject to satisfaction of a performance condition whereby the company’s Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”)
is compared with the TSR of the constituents of the FTSE 250 Index (excluding Investment Trusts) over a single three-year period. Awards will fully
vest for upper quartile performance reducing on a sliding scale to 25% vesting for median performance. No awards will vest for below median
performance. This condition was chosen to align the interests of executives and shareholders by requiring superior TSR performance compared with
similar sized companies. Additionally, to ensure that the underlying financial performance of the company is also sound, awards will only vest if the
growth in the company’s adjusted earnings per share (as identified in our Annual Report and Accounts) matches or exceeds the growth in the
Retail Prices Index over a single three-year period. Full details of the PSP are contained in the Chairman’s letter to shareholders enclosed with the
notice of 2006 Annual General Meeting.

The existing Long-Term Incentive Plan and Share Option Scheme, under which senior executives have previously received awards, will no longer 
be used by the company. All UK employees, including executive directors, will continue to be eligible to participate in the company’s new 
sharesave plan.

Directors’ service agreements 
Both executive directors have service agreements (dated 21st April 2005 and 16th May 2005 for Roger Dye and Kevin Quinn respectively) which 
are terminable on one year’s notice by either party. Upon termination, the director would receive salary, target bonus, benefits and pension
contribution in respect of the outstanding notice period. Other than following a change of control, this amount is subject to mitigation if the
director has obtained alternative employment which he is under obligation to seek. 

Under their service agreements, executive directors are allowed (subject to board approval) to hold up to one non-executive post and retain the 
fee received from any such post. Currently Roger Dye is a non-executive director of Nestor Healthcare plc and received an annual fee of £37,000
(2004: £35,000) in respect of that role. 

Chairman and non-executive directors 
The Chairman’s annual fee is set by the Committee and is currently £95,000. The non-executive directors receive annual fees at a level approved 
by the entire board, currently set at £30,000 together with an extra £2,500 for each of the audit and remuneration committee of which they are 
a member and a further £5,000 if they chair that committee. They are able to claim reimbursement of actual expenditure incurred in carrying out
their duties. There is no entitlement to participate in the company’s pension scheme, bonus scheme or share schemes and no compensation is
payable for early termination of their contracts or terms of office. 

The Chairman has been appointed for a fixed term of three years to April 2008, terminable at three months’ notice by either party. The terms of
office of non-executive directors are for periods not exceeding three years which can be terminated by either party giving one month’s notice.
These terms of office are subject to shareholders’ approval when non-executive directors seek re-election at annual general meetings.

Financial Times Stock Exchange Mid 250 Index comprises the share prices of the 250 companies that follow the top 100 (comprising the FTSE 100)

Directors’ remuneration
(a) Aggregate disclosures 2005 2004

£000s £000s

Salaries, fees and benefits 1,188 2,066
Realised gains made on exercise of share options 316 143
Contributions in respect of individual pension arrangements 130 80
Share based payments 23 19
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Total shareholder return 
The Committee believes that the FTSE Mid 250 Index (excluding
Investment Trusts) is the most suitable index against which to
compare the historic TSR of the company, due to the size of the
company and because the constituents of this index are to be used
as comparators in the PSP. The adjacent chart shows the TSR of the
company compared with that index over the five year period to 
31st December 2005.



(b) Analysis of directors’ remuneration 2005 2004

Salary/fees Bonus (ix) Benefits Total Total
Note £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Current executive directors
I R Dye (i) 341 136 20 497 650
K Quinn (ii) 138 44 8 190 –
Non-executive directors
C R M Kemball (iii) 75 – – 75 40
J D Burns 35 – – 35 30
P G Rogerson 37 – – 37 18
P H Utnegaard (iv) 37 – – 37 –

Former executive directors
J C Ivey (v) 154 – 32 186 1,010
P E Smeeth (vi) 95 – 6 101 241

Former non-executive director
N W Benson (vii) 25 – 5 30 77

937 180 71 1,188 2,066

(i) Roger Dye was appointed Chief Executive on 1st May 2005. He received cash benefits of £1,875 (2004: Nil) in respect of fuel benefit.
(ii) Kevin Quinn was appointed Finance Director on 16th May 2005. He received cash benefits of £7,545 (2004: Nil) in respect of car allowance.
(iii) Christopher Kemball was appointed Chairman on 1st May 2005.
(iv) Per Utnegaard was appointed on 5th January 2005.
(v) John Ivey retired on 30th April 2005.
(vi) Paul Smeeth resigned from the board on 25th May 2005.
(vii) Neil Benson resigned from the board on 30th April 2005. He is available for consultation for two years on a fee of £50,000 p.a. and has a company car. He received £33,300 in respect
of this arrangement in the period to 31st December 2005.
(viii) John Franks, a former non-executive director, received a final payment of £27,500 in April 2005 in respect of services provided under a consultancy agreement. He was also gifted his
company car which had a value of approximately £10,000.
(ix) As a result of the company’s financial performance for the financial year, as measured by adjusted earnings per share, the following bonuses were earned by the executive directors:
25% of salary for Roger Dye and 15% of salary for Kevin Quinn (the lower percentage for Kevin Quinn reflecting the part-year that he has been employed by the company). The executive
directors also earned bonuses of 15% and 5% of salary respectively as a result of the successful achievement of pre-set strategic targets during the year.
(x) The share based expense attributable to unexercised shares as at 31st December 2005 for Roger Dye and Kevin Quinn was £15,911 (2004: £302) and £7,069 (2004: Nil) respectively.

(c) Directors’ pension arrangements Defined benefit scheme

Transfer Transfer Transfer Increase in Increase in Accrued Accrued
value at value at value of transfer accrued entitlement at entitlement at

31st December 31st December increase net value over pension during 31st December 31st December
2005 2004 of inflation the year the year 2005 2004

Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Current executive directors
I R Dye (i) – – – – – – –
K Quinn (ii) – – – – – – –
Former executive directors
J C Ivey (iii) 7,270 6,941 197 329 15 300 285 
P E Smeeth (iv) 1,902 1,580  139  322  7 72 65

(i) Contributions in respect of Roger Dye’s personal pension arrangements amounted to £102,000 (2004: £80,000).
(ii) Contributions in respect of Kevin Quinn’s personal pension arrangements amounted to £28,000 (2004: Nil).
(iii) John Ivey retired on 30th April 2005. He received a tax free lump sum of £653,000 and his residual pension was £300,000 per year as at 31st December 2005.
(iv) The accrued entitlement for Paul Smeeth is that which would be paid at normal retirement date based on service to 31st May 2005.
(v) The increase in transfer values over the year are net of member contributions paid in the year.
(vi) Transfer values do not represent sums payable to the executive directors by the company.
(vii) The increase in accrued pension, net of inflation, for 2005 for the former executive directors was: John Ivey £73,700 (2004: £4,891) and Paul Smeeth £5,400 (2004: £5,600).

Report on directors’ remuneration continued
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Directors’ interests
(a) Total interests
The interests of the current directors and their families in the issued shares of the company and rights under the share option and sharesave
schemes on the dates set out below were as follows:

31st December 2005 31st December 2004

30 pence Share Sharesave 25 pence Share Sharesave
Ordinary shares options scheme Ordinary shares options scheme

I R Dye 76,583 100,000 6,416 39,166 52,735  6,416
K Quinn 5,000 50,000 – – – –
J D Burns 74,911 – – 89,894 – –
C R M Kemball 20,000 – – 20,000  – –
P G Rogerson – – – – – –
P H Utnegaard – – – – – –

(i) On 31st August 2005 the company sought and received approval for every 6 ordinary 25 pence shares to be converted into 5 new ordinary 30 pence shares.
(ii) No changes have occurred in the above between 1st January and 23rd February 2006.

(b) Share options at 31st December 2005
Market

1st January During the year 31st December Exercise price at date
2005 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2005 price of exercise

Number Number Number Number Number Pence Pence Exercise period

Share option schemes (note ii)
Current executive directors
I R Dye (note iii) 52,735 – (52,735) – – 245.32 449.93 Sep 2003 – Sep 2010

– 100,000 – – 100,000 445.75 – Jun 2008 – Jun 2015

K Quinn – 50,000 – – 50,000 445.75 – Jun 2008 – Jun 2015

Former executive directors
J C Ivey 52,735 – (52,735) – – 340.04 439.88 Jun 2001 – Jun 2008

52,735 – (52,735) – – 367.77 439.88 Apr 2002 – Apr 2009

P E Smeeth 35,157 – (35,157) – – 340.04 454.88 Jun 2001 – Jun 2008
35,157 – (35,157) – – 367.77 454.88 Apr 2002 – Apr 2009
12,735 – (12,735) – – 251.29 454.88 Mar 2003 – Mar 2010

Sharesave scheme
Current executive directors
I R Dye 6,416 – – – 6,416 256.00 – Dec 2007 – May 2008

Former executive directors
J C Ivey 3,203 – (2,738) (465) – 202.23 443.63 Dec 2005 – May 2006

1,385 – (649) (736) – 256.00 443.63 Dec 2007 – May 2008

P E Smeeth 4,805 – (4,200) (605) – 202.23 437.88 Dec 2005 – May 2006
2,720 – (1,320) (1,400) – 256.00 437.88 Dec 2007 – May 2008

(c) Realised gain on exercise of share options 2005 2004
£000s £000s

J C Ivey 99 137
I R Dye (note iii) 108 –
P E Smeeth 109 –
L A Fielding (resigned on 15th December 2003) – 6

(i) The closing mid-market price of the ordinary shares at 31st December 2005 was 484.50 pence and during the year ranged from 407.38 pence to 484.50 pence.
(ii) All of these options are exercisable subject to the group’s normalised earnings per share growth, over any three-year period during the life of the option, exceeding the growth in the 
UK Retail Prices Index by an average of at least 3% per annum. No further options will be granted under this scheme.
(iii) I R Dye did not dispose of any of the shares purchased through the exercising of options during 2005.

On behalf of the board

Per Utnegaard Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
24th February 2006
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The directors present their annual report and audited financial statements for the year
ended 31st December 2005.

Financial results 
The financial results for the year are set out on page 26. For the continuing group, profit 
for the year before taxation was £80.7 million compared to £81.1 million for the previous
year. Profit for the period from discontinued operations, including the profit on sale of
Elliott, was £69.5 million after tax compared to a loss of £8.4 million for the previous 
year. After taxation, profit attributable to equity shareholders is £127.1 million, compared
to £47.0 million for the previous year. The final proposed dividend to ordinary and
redeemable B shareholders will absorb an estimated £20.1 million (2004: £23.0 million) 
of shareholders funds.

Financial review 
The principal activities and a review of the results and future prospects are dealt with in the Chairman’s statement, the Chief Executive’s review and
the financial review on pages 3 to 13.

Dividends 
The directors recommend a final dividend of 11.80 pence per ordinary share to be paid on 2nd May 2006 to shareholders on the register at 
7th April 2006 which, together with the dividend of 5.50 pence paid in October 2005, makes a total dividend for the year of 17.30 pence 
(2004: 16.50 pence). The directors will also pay a final dividend of 1.64 pence per redeemable B share to be paid on 2nd May 2006 to shareholders
on the register at 7th April 2006.

Directors 
The current directors of the company are set out on page 2. Each served throughout the year ended 31st December 2005 except Per Utnegaard
who was appointed to the board on 5th January 2005 and Kevin Quinn who was appointed on 16th May 2005. Former directors, Neil Benson
and John Ivey, retired from the board on 30th April 2005 and Paul Smeeth resigned from the board on 25th May 2005.

John Burns retires by rotation at the annual general meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for re-election. Kevin Quinn, as a director appointed
to the board during the year, offers himself for election by the shareholders. 

Details of the number of board meetings held during the year and attendance by individual directors are included in the Corporate Governance
Statement on page 16.

The interests of the current directors, together with those of their families, in the shares of the company, are included in the report on directors’
remuneration which is set out on pages 18 to 21.

Share capital Details of the movements in the year are set out in note 20.

Substantial shareholdings As at 24th February 2006 the following shareholders had notified interests in the company’s ordinary share capital:

Material interests in 3% or more:

Aviva 3.0

Fidelity Investment Services 5.7

Legal & General 3.2

Prudential plc 6.9

Sanderson Asset Management Limited 4.3

Entire interests in 10% or more:

Silchester International Investors Limited 16.2 

By means of Section 203(2)(b) of the Companies Act 1985, Silchester International Investors Limited is deemed to be interested in the shares Sanderson Asset Management Limited control
as well its own interests detailed above.

Changes in composition of the group 
On 25th May 2005 Elliott Group was sold for total gross proceeds of £166 million; further details of this transaction are set out in note 29(b). 
The group acquired the businesses and net assets of a number of small textile maintenance operations during the year for a total consideration of
£22.7m. These transactions have been accounted for as acquisitions in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard No 3. Details of
the fair value of net assets acquired and consideration paid are set out in note 29(a) to the financial statements. 

B shares and reorganisation of share capital 
The company announced on 24th February 2006 that it intends to redeem the remaining B shares still in issue on 2nd May 2006 (at a cost of 
£6.5 million). The directors propose that once the B shares have been redeemed, the share capital of the company should be reorganised so that
the company only has one class of authorised shares, namely ordinary shares. Resolution 7, if passed, will effect this change by converting the 
B shares into an additional 502,984,176 ordinary shares, and by amending the Articles of Association of the company to remove references to the
B shares and the class rights which attached thereto. 
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The company sought and received approval at an extraordinary general meeting on 15th August 2005 to return 74 pence per ordinary share
(£150.9 million in aggregate) to shareholders via the issue of redeemable B shares. On 31st August 2005 195,110,995 B shares were redeemed at
a cost of £144.4 million. As part of the return of capital the company sought and received approval for every six ordinary 25 pence shares to be
converted into five new ordinary 30 pence shares. Trading in the new shares commenced on 19th August 2005. 

Copies of the Memorandum and Articles of Association in their current form and as they are proposed to be amended may be inspected at the
offices of Slaughter and May, One Bunhill Row, London EC1Y 8YY, during usual business hours on any weekday (weekends and public holidays
excluded), until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting on 25th April 2006.

Authority to allot shares 
As in previous years, resolutions will also be proposed to authorise the directors to allot shares up to approximately one-third of the company’s
issued ordinary share capital of which approximately 5% may be issued for cash on a non-preemptive basis. The two resolutions (numbers 8 and
9) are set out in full in the Notice of Meeting. No issue will be made which would effectively alter the control of the company without the prior
approval of shareholders in general meeting. The directors have no present intention of exercising this authority.

Purchase of own shares 
In certain circumstances it may be advantageous for the company to purchase its own shares. A special resolution (number 10) will be proposed 
at the April 2006 annual general meeting to seek authority from shareholders to do so, such authority to expire on the date of the next following
annual general meeting or a date 18 months from the date of the resolution, whichever is the earlier. The directors intend to exercise this power
only if and when, in the light of market conditions prevailing at the time, they believe that the effect of such purchases will be in the best interests
of shareholders generally. 

Other investment opportunities, appropriate gearing levels and the overall position of the company will be taken into account before deciding
upon this course of action. The resolution specifies the maximum number of shares which may be acquired (being 10% of the company’s issued
share capital) and the maximum and minimum prices at which they may be purchased. The shareholders’ authority granted at the 2005 annual
general meeting remains valid until the next annual general meeting. 

The company has reviewed the Companies (Acquisition of Own Shares) (Treasury Shares) Regulations 2003 (the Regulations) which amended the
Act on 1st December 2003 in relation to treasury shares.

The Regulations allow companies to hold shares purchased on the market in treasury with a view to possible re-issue at a future date, as an
alternative to cancelling them. If the company were to purchase any of its own shares, it may consider holding them as treasury shares, subject 
to the authority allowed by resolution number 10, provided that the number of treasury shares does not at any one time exceed 10% of the
company’s issued share capital. This would allow the company to re-issue treasury shares quickly and cost effectively and would provide the
company with additional flexibility in the management of its capital base. The company currently has no treasury shares.

The board are committed to managing the company’s capital effectively and the directors keep the option of buying back the company’s shares
under review. The directors will only purchase Davis shares on the market if they believe it is in shareholders’ best interests to reduce the issued
share capital and that to do so would increase earnings per share. 

Directors’ indemnity 
The Companies (Audit, Investigations and Community Enterprise) Act 2004 (‘C(AICE)A’) came into force on 6th April 2005. C(AICE)A inserts
Sections 309A and 309B into the Companies Act 1985. These provisions broadly allow a company to indemnify its directors against liability to 
third parties arising in connection with any negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust by the directors in relation to the company. 
Such an indemnity may not, however, protect a director against liability incurred by the director to the company or any associated company.
Neither may the company provide an indemnity against any liability incurred by a director in defending criminal proceedings in which he is
convicted, nor against any liability to pay a fine imposed in criminal proceedings or by a regulatory authority. C(AICE)A also inserts a new section
337A into the Companies Act 1985. This allows a company to fund its directors’ defence costs as they are incurred in both civil and criminal cases,
through the granting of a loan to a director. The loan must be repaid by any director who is not exonerated (though the costs incurred in civil cases
involving third parties could be paid by the company under the indemnity discussed above). Previously, companies have only been able to fund a
director’s defence costs once final judgment in the director’s favour has been reached.

The board believes that the provision of appropriate indemnities and the funding of directors’ defence costs as they are incurred, as permitted by
the new legislation, is consistent with evolving market practice, and are important to ensure that the company continues to attract and retain the
highest calibre of directors. 

The board therefore proposes that the company’s Articles of Association be amended to reflect the new statutory provisions. The proposed
resolution (number 11) is a special resolution to amend Article 140 of the Articles of Association of the company accordingly.

As noted above, copies of the Memorandum and Articles of Association in their current form and as they are proposed to be amended may be
inspected at the offices of Slaughter and May, One Bunhill Row, London EC1Y 8YY, during usual business hours on any weekday (weekends and
public holidays excluded), until the conclusion of the annual general meeting on 25th April 2006.

Political and charitable donations 
Financial contributions to a wide range of charities and good causes during the year amounted to £30,000 (2004: £13,000), of which £20,000
related to the Royal Shakespeare Company. There were no political donations.
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The directors are required by the Companies Act 1985 to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company and the group as at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss for the financial year.

The financial statements on pages 26 to 66 have been prepared on a going concern basis, suitable accounting policies have been used and applied
consistently, reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates have been made and applicable accounting standards have been followed.

The directors are responsible for ensuring that the company keeps accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial
position of the company and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985.

The directors have a general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the company’s website. Information published on the internet is accessible 
in many countries with different legal requirements. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

By order of the board

David Lawler Secretary

24th February 2006

Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements

Corporate Social Responsibility 
As stated in our 2004 Directors’ Report, the board decided that the further coordination and development of our approach to managing our
Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) should be the responsibility of the newly appointed Chief Executive. Since May 2005, the group has
been performing a detailed review in order to identify the most significant CSR risks that might impact on the short-term and long-term value
of the group. As a result of this review, policies have been developed in conjunction with the group Ethics Policy, that are intended to drive
appropriate management of significant CSR risk areas which include:

Health and safety – recognising that it is the responsibility of management to maintain healthy and safe working conditions for all of our
employees and others, including customers;

Human resources and employees – understanding the importance of creating and maintaining a working environment where the basic rights
of all of our employees are recognised;

The environment – demonstrating our commitment to protecting the environment consistent with the principles of the European Textile 
Services Association; 

The community – giving due consideration to the obligations we have to the communities in which we operate; and

Textile suppliers – requiring all our businesses to seek appropriate confirmation that our suppliers, and in particular our overseas textile suppliers,
adopt appropriate labour practices including a fair and honest approach to their employees and anyone with whom they trade.

Reporting procedures are now in place in order that the board can be satisfied that all of the above significant CSR risk areas are being
appropriately managed.

Employees It is the group’s policy not to discriminate between employees or potential employees on any grounds: promotion and
development are based on each individual’s aptitude, abilities and skills.

It is also the group’s policy not to discriminate against disabled persons, in particular with regard to recruitment and selection, training, career
development and promotion. Where an employee becomes disabled during the course of their employment, every effort is made to ensure
that their employment with the group continues and that appropriate training is arranged.

Creditor payment policy It continues to be the group’s policy to agree the terms of payment with each of its suppliers at the commencement
of the trading relationship and to abide by those terms provided that the supplier has performed in accordance with the relevant terms and
conditions. Trade creditor days of the company for the year ended 31st December 2005 were eight days (2004: ten days) and for the group’s
major trading companies were 31 days (2004: 33 days).

Auditors The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution that they may be
reappointed will be proposed at the annual general meeting.

By order of the board

David Lawler Secretary

24th February 2006



We have audited the group financial statements of The Davis Service Group Plc (the ‘group’) for the year ended 31st December 2005 which comprise
the consolidated income statement, consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated cash flow statement, the statement of recognised income and
expense and the related notes 1 to 34. These group financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of The Davis Service Group Plc for the year ended 31st December 2005
and on the information in the on report on directors’ remuneration that is described as having been audited.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set out in the statement of directors’ responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body
in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the group financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the group financial statements
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. We also report to you if, in our
opinion, the Directors’ report is not consistent with the group financial statements, if we have not received all the information and explanations 
we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding director’s remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate governance statement reflects the company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the 2003 FRC Combined
Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not. We are not required to consider
whether the board’s statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the group’s corporate
governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited group financial statements. 
The other information comprises only the Directors’ report, the Chairman’s statement, the Operating review and the Financial review and the
Corporate governance statement and the unaudited part of the report on directors’ remuneration. We consider the implications for our report 
if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the group financial statements. Our responsibilities do not
extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices board. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the group financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the group financial statements, and of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the group financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the group
financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion:
• the group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the state of the group’s

affairs as at 31st December 2005 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended; and 
• the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

24th February 2006

Independent auditors’ report
To the shareholders of The Davis Service Group Plc
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Year to Year to
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
Notes £m £m

Continuing operations
Revenue 1 661.7 651.5 
Cost of sales (361.9) (354.3)

Gross profit 299.8 297.2 
Other operating income 5.9 4.9
Distribution costs (123.9) (121.0)
Administrative expenses (81.9) (85.0)
Other operating expenses (12.0) (1.7)

Operating profit 1 87.9 94.4 
Analysed as:
Operating profit before exceptional items and amortisation of customer contracts 1 91.7 91.0 
Exceptional items 4 (1.8) 4.0 
Amortisation of customer contracts 10 (2.0) (0.6)
Operating profit 1 87.9 94.4 
Finance expense 2 (14.5) (17.0)
Finance income 2 7.3 3.7 

Profit before taxation 80.7 81.1 
Taxation 6 (23.2) (25.4)

Profit for the year from continuing operations 57.5 55.7 
Discontinued operations
Profit for the period from discontinued operations 5 2.6 11.9 
Profit/(loss) on sale of discontinued operations 5 66.9 (20.3)

Profit for the year from discontinued operations 69.5 (8.4)

Profit for the year 127.0 47.3 

(Loss)/profit attributable to minority interest (0.1) 0.3 
Profit attributable to equity shareholders 127.1 47.0 

127.0 47.3

Earnings per share expressed in pence per share
– Basic 8 66.8 23.3
– Diluted 8 66.5 23.2
Earnings per share from continuing operations
– Basic 8 30.3 27.4 
– Diluted 8 30.2 27.4 
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Year to Year to
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Profit for the financial year 127.0 47.3

Exchange adjustments offset in reserves (8.2) 2.0
Actuarial losses recognised in the pension scheme (14.4) (32.0)
Deferred tax arising on actuarial losses 4.3 9.6

Net losses not recognised in income statement (18.3) (20.4)

Total recognised income for the year 108.7 26.9

Attributable to:
Minority interest (0.1) 0.3
Equity shareholders 108.8 26.6

Statement of recognised income and expense
For the year ended 31st December 2005



As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
Notes £m £m

Assets
Goodwill 9 287.1 295.0
Intangible assets 10 16.4 9.8
Property, plant and equipment 11 367.2 449.9
Investments 12 – 20.0
Assets classified as held for sale 4.4 1.4
Deferred tax assets 19 27.9 23.4

Total non-current assets 703.0 799.5

Inventories 13 12.3 22.3
Income tax receivable 4.0 2.3
Trade and other receivables 14 118.1 149.0
Cash and cash equivalents 14(a) 117.6 73.9

Current assets 252.0 247.5

Liabilities
Bank overdrafts 16 0.5 12.2
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 16 3.2 46.4
Income tax payable 7.1 8.8
Trade and other payables 15 76.2 91.7
Accruals and deferred income 15 55.7 64.4
Provisions 18 3.3 –

Total current liabilities 146.0 223.5

Net current assets 106.0 24.0

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 16 328.1 265.8
Retirement benefit obligations 31 57.2 71.2
Other payables 18 0.8 0.3
Deferred tax liabilities 19 45.1 44.5

Total non-current liabilities 431.2 381.8

Net assets 377.8 441.7

Equity
Share capital 20 57.7 50.7 
Share premium 21 93.2 240.2 
Other reserves 23 0.5 1.1 
Capital redemption reserve 24 144.4 –  
Retained earnings 22 80.5 148.0

Total shareholders’ equity 376.3 440.0

Minority interest in equity 26 1.5 1.7 

Total equity 25 377.8 441.7

The financial statements on pages 26 to 66 were approved by the board and signed on its behalf

I Roger Dye Director

Kevin Quinn Director

24th February 2006
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Year to Year to
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
Notes £m £m

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 27 219.5 227.7
Interest paid (18.0) (15.8)
Interest received 7.7 2.9
Income tax paid (19.0) (17.0)

Net cash generated from operating activities 190.2 197.8

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 29 (19.3) (11.7)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (132.8) (140.6)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 11.1 19.1
Purchases of intangible assets 10 (3.9) (2.0)
Proceeds from sale of businesses, net of overdrafts 153.2 116.9
Special pension contribution payments following disposal of business (23.0) –
Repayment/(issue) of loan notes 12 20.5 (20.5)
Receipt of promissory loan notes 5.0 –

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 10.8 (38.8)

Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary share capital 4.9 4.1
Drawdown of borrowings 443.6 –
Repayment of borrowings (412.4) (105.3)
Repayment of loan notes – (0.1)
Repayment of finance leases/hire purchase liabilities (3.6) (4.3)
Dividends paid to company’s shareholders 7 (32.2) (32.1)
Dividends paid to minority interests’ – (0.1)
Redemption of B shares 24 (144.4) –
Share redemption issue costs 24 (0.5) –

Net cash used in financing activities (144.6) (137.8)

Net increase in cash and bank overdrafts 56.4 21.2
Cash and bank overdrafts at beginning of year 61.7 38.2
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and bank overdrafts (1.0) 2.3

Cash and bank overdrafts at end of year (note i) 117.1 61.7

Free cash flow 64.6 74.3

Analysis of free cash flow
Net cash generated from operating activities 190.2 197.8
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (132.8) (140.6)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 11.1 19.1
Purchases of intangible assets (3.9) (2.0)

Free cash flow 64.6 74.3

Free cash flow from continuing operations 62.8 59.4

(i) Included within cash and bank overdrafts are £0.5 million of overdrafts (2004: £12.2 million).

Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31st December 2005



Basis of preparation
The group have adopted the requirements of International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and IFRIC interpretations endorsed by the
European Union (EU) and those parts of the Companies Act, 1985
applicable to companies reporting under IFRS, for the first time for the
purpose of preparing financial statements for the period ending 31st
December 2005. The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of assets held
for sale.

The group issued an IFRS transition report on 29th June 2005 that set
out the restated 2004 comparatives and the 2005 opening balance
sheet and also provided the reconciliations required by IFRS.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting policies, set out below, which have been consistently applied
to all the years presented except for those detailed below where IFRS 1
permits companies adopting IFRS for the first time to take exemptions.
These accounting policies comply with applicable IFRS standards and
IFRIC interpretations issued and effective at the time of preparing 
these statements.

The rules for first time adoption of IFRS are set out in IFRS 1, ‘First-time
Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’. IFRS 1 requires
use of the same accounting policies in the IFRS transition balance sheet
and for all periods presented thereafter.

IFRS 1 permits companies adopting IFRS for the first time to take
exemptions from the full requirements of IFRS in the transition period.
These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of taking
the following exemptions:

(a) Business combinations prior to 1st January 2004 have not been
restated to comply with IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’.

(b) All cumulative actuarial gains and losses with respect to 
employee benefits have been recognised in shareholders’ equity 
at 1st January 2004.

(c) IAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosure and presentation’ or
IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement’ have
been adopted from 1st January 2005, with no restatement for
comparative information.

(d) IFRS 2 ‘Share-based payments’ has not been applied to equity
instruments granted before 7th November 2002.

(e) The group has elected to use previous revaluations for certain
properties as deemed cost on the date of transition.

The group has adopted IFRS 5 ‘Non current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations’ from 1st January 2004.

Consolidation
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
group and are de-consolidated from the date on which control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the group.

All intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the 
consolidation process.

Business combinations
Under the requirements of IFRS 3, all business combinations are
accounted for using the purchase method (‘acquisition accounting’).
The cost of a business acquisition is the aggregate of fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, equity
instruments issued by the acquirer and any costs directly attributable 
to the business combination. The cost of a business combination is
allocated at the acquisition date by recognising the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that satisfy the recognition
criteria, at their fair values at that date. The acquisition date is the 
date on which the acquirer effectively obtains control of the acquiree.
An intangible asset, such as customer lists, brands, patents or royalties, 
is recognised if it meets the definition of an intangible asset in IAS 38
‘Intangible assets’, and its fair value can be measured reliably. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the group’s share of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly 
in the income statement.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency Items included in the financial
statements of each of the group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Sterling, which is the company’s functional
and presentation currency. 

(b) Group companies The results of group entities that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency (Sterling) are translated
into Sterling at the average exchange rate and the balance sheets are
translated at year-end exchange rates. Exchange differences arising 
on retranslation are taken directly to shareholders’ equity. 

In addition, exchange differences arising from the translation of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges 
of such investments are also taken to shareholders’ equity. 

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of 
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. 

Revenue recognition 
Group revenue comprises the fair value for the rendering of services, 
net of value added tax and other similar sales based taxes, rebates 
and discounts and after eliminating sales within the group. Revenue is
recognised as follows:

(a) Rental/service income Rental assets such as garments, linen and
washroom equipment which are owned by the group entities where
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of such equipment is
retained by group entities are capitalised as fixed assets and depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Income received or receivable in respect of service income is credited 
to revenue as and when services are rendered in respect of linen and
washroom services. Rental income from rental assets is accounted 
for on an operating lease basis and is credited to revenue on a time
apportioned basis.

(b) Sale of goods revenue For non-contract based business, revenue
represents the value of goods delivered. 
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Segment reporting
A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in
providing services that are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of other business segments. A geographical segment is
engaged in providing services within a particular economic environment
that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
segments operating in other economic environments.

Based on the risks and returns the directors consider that the primary
reporting format is by business segment and that the secondary
reporting format is by geographical analysis by origin and destination.

Exceptional items
Items that are either material in size or non operating in nature are
presented as exceptional items in the Income Statement. The directors
are of the opinion that the separate recording of exceptional items
provides helpful information about the group’s underlying business
performance. Examples of events, which may give rise to the
classification of items as exceptional include, inter alia, restructuring of
businesses, gains and losses on disposal of properties, impairment of
goodwill and non-recurring income.

Dividend distribution
Final dividend distribution to the company’s shareholders is recognised 
as a liability in the group’s financial statements in the period in which 
the dividends are approved by the company’s shareholders.

Interim dividends are recognised when paid.

Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the group’s share of the net identifiable assets 
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill net 
of amortisation prior to 1st January 2004 in respect of business
combinations made since 1st January 1998 is included within intangible
assets. Goodwill in respect of business combinations made on or before
31st December 1997 remains eliminated against reserves.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment by cash generating unit.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold except for
goodwill eliminated against reserves.

(b) Computer software/Intellectual Property Rights Acquired computer
software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised
over their estimated useful lives (not exceeding three years).

Costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable 
and unique software products controlled by the group, and that it is
estimated will generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one
year, are recognised as intangible assets. Direct costs include the costs of
software development employees. 

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are
amortised over their estimated useful lives (not exceeding five years).

(c) Customer contracts Intangible assets arising either from legal or
contractual rights which have been purchased are required to be
separately identified from goodwill and are stated at historical cost, 
or in the case of intangible assets acquired as part of a business
combination, at fair value. The fair value attributable to the customer
contracts is determined by discounting the expected future cash flows 
to be generated from that asset at the risk adjusted weighted average
cost of capital for the group. This amount is amortised over the period 
in which the company is expected to benefit from the contracts
acquired, over periods ranging from two to five years.

Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. All property,
plant and equipment (PPE) is shown at cost less subsequent depreciation 
and impairment, except for land, which is shown at cost less
impairment. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to 
the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight line method to
allocate the cost of each asset to its residual value over its estimated
useful life, as follows:

(a) Land and buildings Depreciated at a rate of 2% per annum on an
estimate of the buildings value of freehold properties and leasehold
properties with 50 or more years unexpired at the balance sheet date.
This rate has been determined having regard to the group’s practice
to maintain these assets in a continual state of sound repair and to
extend and make improvements from time to time. Freehold land is 
not depreciated. Short leasehold land and buildings are depreciated by
equal instalments over the period of the lease.

Major renovations are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the
related asset or to the date of the next major renovation, whichever 
is sooner.

(b) Plant and machinery Depreciated at rates of 10% to 50% per
annum, depending on the class of the asset.

(c) Hire and rental inventory Depreciated at rates of 20% to 33%,
depending on class of asset, and augmented by amounts to cover
wastage, obsolescence and loss.

When properties, plant or equipment are sold, the difference 
between the sales proceeds and net book value is included in the
income statement. 

Residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed annually and
amended where necessary. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing value in use, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units) and
cash flow forecasts are made on the assumptions consistent with the
most up-to-date budgets and plans that have been formally approved
by the directors. These cash flows are discounted using the weighted
average cost of capital for the group, adjusted for the particular risks of
the cash generating unit being reviewed for impairment.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
Cost is determined using the first in, first out (FIFO) method. The cost 
of finished goods and work in progress comprises of raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads. 
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable variable selling expenses. Full provision is
made for obsolete, defective and slow moving stock.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the
provision is recognised in the income statement. 



Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts
are shown separately from current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction 
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost.
Any difference between the amount initially recognised (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective 
interest method. 

Borrowings are classified as non current liabilities where the group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Tax is recognised in the income statement except to the extent that 
it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is
recognised in equity.

Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations The group operates various pension schemes
throughout UK, Eire and Europe. The schemes are funded through
payments to insurance companies or a trustee administered fund,
determined by periodic actuarial calculations. The group has both
defined benefit and defined contribution plans. A defined benefit 
plan is a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that
an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one 
or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation. 
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the group
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The group has no legal 
or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. 

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets, together 
with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past
service costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually 
by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of
high quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.

Current and past service costs, to the extent they have vested, are
recognised in operating costs in the Income Statement together with
interest costs on plan liabilities and the expected return on plan assets. 

Cumulative actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are credited or
charged to the statement of recognised income and expense net 
of deferred tax.

For defined contribution plans, the group pays contributions to publicly
or privately administered pension insurance or trustee administered 
plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The group has 
no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to 
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments 
is available.

(b) Share based plans The group’s management awards employees 
share options, from time to time, both on a discretionary and 
non-discretionary basis which are subject to vesting conditions. 
The economic cost of awarding the share options to its employees is
recognised as an employee benefit expense in the Income Statement
equivalent to the fair value of the benefit awarded. The fair value is
determined by reference to the Black-Scholes option pricing model. 
At each balance sheet date, the group revises its estimate of the 
number of options that are expected to become exercisable. 
The charge is recognised in the Income Statement over the vesting
period of the award.

The proceeds received are credited to share capital (nominal value) and
share premium when the options are exercised.

(c) Termination benefits Termination benefits are payable when an
employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The group recognises termination benefits when it is
shown to be committed to either: terminating the employment of
current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility
of withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy. 

(d) Holiday pay Paid holidays are regarded as an employee benefit and
as such are charged to the Income Statement as the benefits are earned. 
An accrual is made at the balance sheet date to reflect the fair value of
holidays earned but not yet taken. 

Provisions
Provisions for vacant properties, restructuring costs and legal claims are
recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events and it is more likely than not that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. The group’s accounting policies on these
areas can be found in note 18.

Leases
(a) The group is the lessee Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the
lease’s inception at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and 
the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment
is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long
term payables. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to 
the income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are
depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term.

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership are classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the period
of the lease.

(b) The group is the lessor Assets leased to third parties by the group
are classified as operating leases and are included in property, plant
and equipment in the balance sheet. They are depreciated over their
expected useful lives (see property, plant and equipment section).
Rental income (net of any incentives given to lessees) is recognised 
on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Accounting policies to the consolidated financial statements
continued
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Accounting for derivative financial instruments and 
hedging activities
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
value at balance sheet date. The method of recognising the resulting
gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. 
The group designates certain derivatives as either (i) hedges of the fair
value of recognised assets or liabilities or (ii) hedges of net investments 
in foreign operations. 

The group documents at the inception of the transaction the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items and its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of
whether the derivatives that are used in the hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values of hedged items.

(a) Fair value hedge Changes in the fair value of the derivatives that are
fully designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the
Income Statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the
hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

(b) Net investment hedge Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument
relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised directly
against reserves. The gain or loss relating to any ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the Income Statement.

(c) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting Changes in the
fair value of any derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in the Income Statement.

Key assumptions and sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income, expenses and related disclosures. The estimates 
and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Changes in accounting estimates may be necessary if there 
are changes in the circumstances on which the estimate was based, 
or as a result of new information or more experience. Such changes 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised.

The key assumptions about the future and key sources of estimation
uncertainty that have a risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying value of assets and liabilities within the next twelve months 
are described below. 

(a) Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, including
goodwill The group has property, plant and equipment with a carrying
value of £367.2 million (note 11), goodwill has a carrying value of
£287.1 million (note 9) and intangible assets have a carrying value 
of £16.4 million (note 10). These assets are reviewed annually for
impairment as described above (Goodwill and property, plant and
equipment sections). To assess if any impairment exists, estimates are
made of the future cash flows expected to result from the use of the
asset and its eventual disposal. Actual outcomes could vary from such
estimates of discounted future cash flows. Factors such as changes 
in the planned use of buildings, machinery or equipment, or closure 
of facilities, the presence or absence of competition, or lower than
anticipated sales could result in shortened useful lives or impairment.

(b) Pensions and other post-employment benefits The group operates a
number of defined benefit schemes within the UK and the continent
(note 31), as at 31st December 2005 the present value of the group’s
defined benefit obligation for funded plans was £43.8 million and
£13.4 million for unfunded plans. The calculations of the recognised
assets and liabilities from such plans are based upon statistical and
actuarial calculations. In particular the present value of the defined
benefit obligation is impacted by assumptions on discount rates used to
arrive at the present value of future pension liabilities, and assumptions
on future increases in salaries and benefits. Furthermore, the group’s
independent actuaries use statistically based assumptions covering 
areas such as future withdrawals of participants from the plan and
estimates on life expectancy. The actuarial assumptions used may differ
materially from actual results due to changes in market and economic
conditions, higher or lower withdrawal rates or longer or shorter life
spans of participants and other changes in the factors being assessed.
These differences could impact the assets or liabilities recognised in the
balance sheet in future periods.

(c) Income taxes At 31st December 2005, the net liability for current
income taxes is £3.1 million and the net liability for deferred income
taxes is £17.2 million as disclosed in note 19. Estimates may be required
in determining the level of current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities, which management believes are reasonable and adequately
recognises any income tax related uncertainties.

Various factors may have favourable or unfavourable effects on the
income tax assets and liabilities. These include changes in tax laws, tax
rates, interpretations of existing tax laws, future levels of spending and
in overall levels of future earnings.
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1 Segmental information
(a) Primary reporting format – business segments At 31st December 2005, the group has only one business segment being textile maintenance
within UK, Eire and the Continent. On 25th May 2005, the group sold its building systems division, the segment results relating to this division are
reported as a discontinued operation.

The unallocated segment relates to corporate overheads, assets and liabilities.

Based on the risks and returns the directors consider that the primary reporting format is by business segment and that the secondary reporting
format is by geographical analysis by origin and destination.

The segment results for the year ended 31st December 2005 are as follows:
Textile Textile Total

maintenance maintenance Textile
UK and Eire Continent maintenance Unallocated Group

£m £m £m £m £m

Revenue 268.4 393.3 661.7 – 661.7 

Continuing operations
Operating profit before exceptional items and 
amortisation of customer contracts 34.3 61.7 96.0 (4.3) 91.7 
Exceptional items 0.4 (2.2) (1.8) – (1.8)
Amortisation of customer contracts (0.4) (1.6) (2.0) – (2.0)

Segment result 34.3 57.9 92.2 (4.3) 87.9 
Net finance expense (7.2)

Profit before taxation 80.7 
Taxation (23.2)

Profit from continuing operations 57.5 
Profit from discontinued operations 2.6 
Profit on sale of discontinued operations 66.9 

Profit for the year 127.0 

Loss attributable to minority interests (0.1)

Profit attributable to equity shareholders 127.1 

Capital expenditure 68.4 73.3 141.7 0.2 141.9 
Depreciation and amortisation 56.2 66.4 122.6 0.1 122.7 

The capital expenditure and depreciation and amortisation for discontinued operations for the year was £7.3 million and £5.6 million respectively.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, including additions resulting from acquisitions
through business combinations.

The segment results for the year ended 31st December 2004 are as follows:
Textile Textile Total

maintenance maintenance Textile
UK and Eire Continent maintenance Unallocated Group

£m £m £m £m £m

Revenue 263.3 388.2 651.5 – 651.5

Operating profit before exceptional items and 
amortisation of customer contracts 38.4 56.4 94.8 (3.8) 91.0
Exceptional items 2.9 1.1 4.0 – 4.0
Amortisation of customer contracts (0.2) (0.4) (0.6) – (0.6)

Operating profit 41.1 57.1 98.2 (3.8) 94.4 
Net finance expense (13.3)

Profit before taxation 81.1 
Taxation (25.4)

Profit from continuing operations 55.7
Profit from discontinued operations 11.9
Loss on sale of discontinued operations (20.3)

Profit for the year 47.3

Profit attributable to minority interests 0.3

Profit attributable to equity shareholders 47.0

Capital expenditure 62.6 75.8 138.4 0.1 138.5 
Depreciation and amortisation 54.5 67.7 122.2 0.2 122.4 

The capital expenditure and depreciation and amortisation for discontinued operations for the year was £18.3 million and £13.2 million respectively.

Notes to financial statements
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1 Segmental information continued
The segment assets and liabilities at 31st December 2005 are as follows:

Textile Textile Total
maintenance maintenance Textile
UK and Eire Continent maintenance Unallocated Group

£m £m £m £m £m

Operating assets 261.6 598.5 860.1 58.6 918.7
Deferred tax assets 7.4 5.2 12.6 15.3 27.9 
Income tax assets – 2.0 2.0 2.0 4.0 
Non current assets held for sale 1.5 2.9 4.4 –  4.4 

Total assets 270.5 608.6 879.1 75.9 955.0

Operating liabilities 52.7 75.2 127.9 8.6 136.5 
Bank loans and finance leases – – – 331.3 331.3 
Deferred tax liabilities 12.8 27.9 40.7 4.4 45.1 
Income tax liabilities 0.5 5.5 6.0 1.1 7.1 
Retirement benefit obligations 26.2 13.4 39.6 17.6 57.2 

Total liabilities 92.2 122.0 214.2 363.0 577.2 

The segment assets and liabilities at 31st December 2004 are as follows:
Textile Textile Total

maintenance maintenance Textile Discontinued
UK and Eire Continent maintenance Unallocated operations Group

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Operating assets 254.7 623.9 878.6 (4.0) 125.3 999.9 
Investments – – – 20.0 – 20.0 
Deferred tax assets 7.1 5.6 12.7 8.6 2.1 23.4 
Income tax assets – 0.9 0.9 1.4 – 2.3 
Non current assets held for sale 0.3 1.1 1.4 – – 1.4 

Total assets 262.1 631.5 893.6 26.0 127.4 1,047.0 

Operating liabilities 48.2 89.9 138.1 (4.2) 34.7 168.6 
Bank loans & finance leases – – –  312.2 – 312.2 
Deferred tax liabilities 10.2 26.0 36.2 0.1 8.2 44.5
Income tax liabilities 1.9 4.9 6.8 0.6 1.4 8.8 
Retirement benefit obligations 26.5 11.8 38.3 25.9 7.0 71.2 

Total liabilities 86.8 132.6 219.4 334.6 51.3 605.3

Segment assets consist primarily of operating assets such as property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill, inventories, receivables and
operating cash. Assets such as investments, deferred taxation, income tax assets and assets classified as held for sale are separately identified.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities and separately identify retirement obligations, deferred tax liabilities, income tax liabilities and
corporate borrowings.
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1 Segmental information continued
(b) Secondary reporting format – geographical segments The group’s operations are based in three main geographical areas. The UK is the home
country of the parent. The main operations in the principal territories are as follows:

UK and Eire
Scandinavia
Other Europe

The sales analysis in the information below is based on the location of the customer which is not materially different from the location where 
the order is received and where the assets are located. Segment assets, which comprise total assets, including financial assets and capital
expenditure are allocated on the basis of where the assets are located.

Revenue Segment assets Capital expenditure

Year to Year to Year to Year to Year to Year to
31st December 31st December 31st December 31st December 31st December 31st December

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Continuing operations
UK and Eire 268.4 263.3 321.7 251.0 68.6 62.7 
Scandinavia 240.1 234.2 386.7 401.8 38.0 44.0 
Other Europe 167.7 166.2 214.7 223.2 35.3 31.8 
Inter segment sales (14.5) (12.2) 31.9 45.7 – –  

661.7 651.5 955.0 921.7 141.9 138.5 

Discontinued operations
UK and Eire 52.5 146.2 – 125.3 7.3 18.3 

714.2 797.7 955.0 1,047.0 149.2 156.8 

The group’s continuing operations turnover is predominantly from services.

2 Net finance costs Year to Year to
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Finance expense:
Interest payable on bank borrowings (4.5) (9.7)
Interest payable on finance leases (0.5) (0.5)
Interest payable on interest rate swaps (7.6) (5.6)
Amortisation of issue costs of bank loans (note i) (1.2) (0.6)
Interest payable on other borrowings (0.7) (0.6)

Finance expense (14.5) (17.0)

Finance income 7.3 3.7

Net finance costs (7.2) (13.3)

(i) Included in the amortisation of issue costs is £0.8 million which relates to unamortised loan issue costs on a loan facility which was replaced in the year. Loan issue costs arising on the new
facility of £0.7 million have been capitalised and will be amortised over the life of the loan.

Notes to financial statements continued
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3 Profit before taxation Year to Year to
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

The following items have been included in arriving at operating profit:

Staff costs (note 30) 281.3 295.9
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 11):
– Owned assets 122.0 130.4
– Under finance leases 3.3 3.8

Amortisation of intangible assets (included within other operating expenses) (note 10):
– Customer contracts 1.7 0.4
– Intellectual property rights 0.3 0.2
– Software 1.0 1.0

Impairment of goodwill (included within other operating expenses – Textile maintenance Europe) (note 9) 0.2 –
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (0.2) (3.1)

Other operating lease rentals payable:
– Plant and machinery 5.9 5.8
– Property 5.1 6.9

Profit on property sales (note 4) (0.3) (3.4)
Restructuring costs (note 4) 7.1 (1.0)
Income from receipt of promissory loan notes (note 4) (5.0) –

Services provided by the group’s auditors and network firms

During the year the group (including its overseas subsidiaries) obtained the following services from the 
group’s auditor at costs as detailed below:

Audit services
– Statutory audit 0.6 0.6 
– Audit – other reporting assignments 0.1 0.1 

Further assurance services
– Services related to the sale of subsidiaries – 0.3 

Tax services
– Compliance services 0.1 – 
– Advisory services 0.6 0.6 
Other services not covered above 0.1 0.2 

Total audit services 1.5 1.8 

Included in the group audit fees and expenses is £0.1 million (2004: £0.1 million) which was paid in respect of the parent company. Also included
above are fees in respect of UK non-audit services of £0.6 million (2004: £0.8 million).
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4 Exceptional items Year to Year to
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Closure costs of laundries (note i) (7.1) –
Property sales (note ii) 0.3 3.0
Income from receipt of promissory loan notes (note iii) 5.0 –
Release of provisions (note iv) – 1.0

Total (1.8) 4.0

(i) During the year the group completed a significant restructuring of its operations in Germany, following the purchase of healthcare contracts from Rentokil Initial Plc. 
An exceptional charge of £7.1 million (tax relief of £2.6 million) has been recognised for the costs of this restructuring, including £1.1 million of non-cash asset write offs.
(ii) The profit on the sale of properties realised in 2005 relates primarily to the sale of properties within the Sunlight Group (tax charge of £0.6 million).
(iii) During the year the group received settlement of promissory notes and debts amounting to £5.0 million (tax charge of £1.2 million), which had previously been fully provided. 
(iv) The exceptional income reported in 2004 relates to the release of provisions not required in respect of the reorganisation of flatwork activities in Scandinavia.

5 Discontinued operations Year to Year to
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Post tax results of discontinued operations 2.6 11.9

Profit/(loss) on sale of discontinued operations 68.0 (19.6)
Taxation (1.1) (0.7)

Net gain/(loss) on disposal 66.9 (20.3)

Total 69.5 (8.4)

On 25th May 2005, the group announced the sale of the Elliott Group for total gross proceeds of £166 million. A profit on the sale of the Elliott
business of £68.0 million has been recorded, net of transaction expenses.

The loss on disposal arising in 2004 related to the disposal of the HSS tool hire business.

Cash flows from discontinued operations Year to Year to
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Net cash flows from operating activities 7.1 26.1
Net cash flows from investing activities (5.4) (10.2)
Net cash flows from financing activities (0.1) (18.6)

Total 1.6 (2.7)

Discontinued operations contributed £52.5 million (2004: £146.2 million) to revenue and £3.0 million to profit after interest (2004: £16.0 million) 
after total costs and expenses of £49.5 million (2004: £130.2 million). The taxation relating to discontinued operations was £1.5 million
(2004: £4.8 million).
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6 Taxation Year to Year to
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Analysis of tax charge for the year
Current tax:
Tax on profits for the current year 14.8 16.9
Adjustments in respect of previous years 0.4 1.1

15.2 18.0

Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 8.9 8.6
Changes in tax rates or imposition of new taxes (0.2) (0.4)
Credit due to previously unrecognised temporary differences (0.7) (0.8)

8.0 7.4

Total tax charge on continuing operations 23.2 25.4

The tax charge for the year is different from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 30%. The difference is explained below:
Year to Year to

31st December 31st December
2005 2004

£m £m

Profit before taxation from continuing operations 80.7 81.1

Multiplied by the rate of corporation tax in the UK of 30% (2004: 30%) 24.2 24.3
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 0.7 1.1
Non taxable income (0.8) (1.0)
Overseas tax rate differences (1.1) (0.4)
Taxable gains different to profit on disposal – 1.0
Unrecognised tax losses 0.4 –
Other (0.2) 0.1
Adjustment in respect of prior years – 0.3

Total tax charge 23.2 25.4

Tax credited to equity Year to Year to
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Deferred tax credit on pension fund actuarial losses (4.3) (9.6)
Deferred tax (credit)/charge relating to share options (0.3) 0.2

(4.6) (9.4)

7 Dividends Year to Year to
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Final paid:11.25 pence per share (2004: 10.60 pence) 22.8 21.4
Interim paid: 5.50 pence per share (2004: 5.25 pence) 9.4 10.7

The directors recommend a final dividend in respect of the financial year ending 31st December 2005 of 11.80 per ordinary share to be paid on
2nd May 2006 to shareholders who are on the register at 7th April 2006. In addition, a dividend of 1.64 pence per share is payable on the
redeemable B shares. The final proposed dividend to ordinary and redeemable B shareholders will reduce shareholders’ funds by an estimated
£20.1 million.
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8 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per ordinary share are based on the group profit for the period and a weighted average of 190,186,349 (2004: 202,346,162)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are based on the group profit for the year and a weighted average of ordinary shares in issue during the year calculated
as follows:

31st December 31st December
2005 2004

Number Number
of shares of shares

In issue 190,186,349 202,346,162 
Dilutive potential ordinary shares arising from unexercised share options 959,694 1,367,305 

191,146,043 203,713,467

An adjusted earnings per ordinary share figure has been presented to eliminate the effects of exceptional items and amortisation of customer
contracts .

This presentation shows the trend in earnings per ordinary share that is attributable to the underlying trading activities of both the total group and
the continuing group.

The reconciliation between the basic and adjusted figures for the continuing group is as follows:
Year to 31st December 2005 Year to 31st December 2004

Earnings Earnings
per share per share

£m pence £m pence

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the company 57.6 30.3 55.4 27.4
for basic earnings per share calculation
Loss/(profit) on sale of properties (after taxation) 0.3 0.2 (1.3) (0.7)
Exceptional income (3.7) (2.0) – –
Restructuring items (after taxation) 4.5 2.3 (1.0) (0.5)
Amortisation of customer contracts (after taxation) 1.6 0.9 0.5 0.3

Adjusted earnings per share – continuing group 60.3 31.7 53.6 26.5

Diluted earnings per share – continuing group 30.2 27.4

The reconciliation between the basic and adjusted figures for the total group including the earnings of the discontinued Elliott business is 
as follows:

Year to 31st December 2005 Year to 31st December 2004

Earnings Earnings
per share per share

£m pence £m pence

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the company 127.1 66.8 47.0 23.3
for basic earnings per share calculation
(Profit)/loss on sale of business (after taxation) (66.9) (35.1) 20.3 10.0
Loss/(profit) on sale of properties (after taxation) 0.3 0.2 (2.3) (1.2)
Exceptional income (3.7) (2.0) – –
Restructuring items (after taxation) 4.5 2.3 (1.0) (0.5)
Amortisation of customer contracts (after taxation) 1.6 0.9 0.5 0.3

Adjusted earnings per share – total group 62.9 33.1 64.5 31.9

Diluted earnings per share – total group 66.5 23.2

Basic earnings per share – discontinued operations 36.5 (4.1)
Diluted earnings per share – discontinued operations 36.3 (4.3)

In accordance with IAS 33 ‘Earnings per share’, prior period earnings per share have not been restated for the capital return and share
consolidation as the overall commercial effect is that of a share repurchase at fair value.
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9 Goodwill As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Cost
At 1st January 331.6 329.2
Acquisitions (note 29) 9.3 0.6
Sold subsidiaries (11.4) –
Currency translation (13.3) 1.8

At 31st December 316.2 331.6

Aggregate impairment
At 1st January 36.6 36.5
Impairment recognised in the year 0.2 –
Sold subsidiaries (3.3) –
Currency translation (4.4) 0.1

At 31st December 29.1 36.6

Net book amount at 31st December 287.1 295.0

Net book amount at 1st January 295.0 292.7

During the year, goodwill was tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 ‘Impairment of assets’. Following the impairment test, the
recoverable amounts for each cash generating unit exceeded the carrying amount of goodwill recorded, with the exception of one cash generating
unit where a goodwill charge of £0.2 million has been recognised through other operating expenses in respect of the goodwill arising on an
acquisition made in France in 2000, and principally resulted from a shortfall in the post acquisition performance of the cash generating unit. 
The recoverable amount for the cash generating unit has been measured based on a value in use calculation. A pre-tax discount rate of 10.4%
was used in the value in use calculation.

The allocation of goodwill to cash generating units has been completed during the year and has been allocated to both business and geographical
segments. The carrying amounts of goodwill by geographical segment are as follows:

As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

UK & Eire 29.7 34.2
Scandinavia 178.6 185.3
Other Europe 78.8 75.5

Total 287.1 295.0

In testing goodwill for impairment, the recoverable amount of each segment’s goodwill is calculated, based on their discounted cash flows.
Future cash flows are based on board approved budgets and strategic plans for a period of the next three years. Forecasts for the following years
are conservatively extrapolated based on the growth rate and profitability outlined in the approved plans.

The following key assumptions in the value in use calculations were uniformly applied to each cash generating unit:

• Budgeted revenue and salary growth was based on the group’s approved budgets and strategic plans between 2006 and 2008.
• Budgeted margin between 2006 and 2008 was based on the average achieved margin in the twelve month period before the budget period

uplifted for expected efficiency improvements which management believes are reasonably achievable.
• Growth rates reflected within the cash flows have been increased in line with historic GDP for the appropriate country.

UK & Eire Scandinavia Other Europe

Revenue growth after 2009 2.5% 2.0% 0.5%
Salary growth after 2009 3%–4% 3%–3.5% 1.3%–5%
Discount rate pre-tax 7.3%–10.5% 9.3%–10.9% 7.7%–10.9%

Management are of the opinion that it does not currently foresee a reasonable possible change in the key assumptions it has employed when
determining the value in use calculations. 

As noted earlier, there has been an impairment charged in the accounts in respect of a cash generating unit that is included within the ‘Other
Europe’ segment. The carrying value of the cash generating unit now equals value in use.
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10 Intangible assets Computer Intellectual Customer
software property rights contracts Total

£m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1st January 2005 8.3 1.5 5.5 15.3
Acquisitions (note 29) – – 5.9 5.9
Additions 3.9 – – 3.9
Currency translation (0.1) (0.1) – (0.2)

At 31st December 2005 12.1 1.4 11.4 24.9

Aggregate amortisation and impairment
At 1st January 2005 4.9 0.2 0.4 5.5
Charge for the period 1.0 0.3 1.7 3.0

At 31st December 2005 5.9 0.5 2.1 8.5

Net book amount at 31st December 2005 6.2 0.9 9.3 16.4

Net book amount at 31st December 2004 3.4 1.3 5.1 9.8

Computer Intellectual Customer
software property rights contracts Total

£m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1st January 2004 6.3 –   –   6.3 
Acquisitions –   1.5 5.5 7.0 
Additions 2.0 –   –   2.0 

At 31st December 2004 8.3 1.5 5.5 15.3 

Aggregate amortisation and impairment
At 1st January 2004 3.9 –   –   3.9 
Charge for the period 1.0 0.2 0.4 1.6 

At 31st December 2004 4.9 0.2 0.4 5.5 

Net book amount at 31st December 2004 3.4 1.3 5.1 9.8 

Net book amount at 31st December 2003 2.4 –   –   2.4 

All amortisation charges have been charged through other operating expenses. The following useful lives have been determined for the intangible
assets acquired during the year:

Computer software – five years.

Intellectual property rights – five years.

Customer contracts – average duration of three to five years.

Notes to financial statements continued
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11 Property, plant and equipment Land and Plant and Hire and rental
buildings machinery inventory Total

£m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1st January 2005 153.1 348.5 468.2 969.8
Additions at cost 6.4 32.3 98.0 136.7
Acquisitions (note 29) 2.0 1.7 3.0 6.7
Sold subsidiaries (15.5) (16.6) (109.2) (141.3)
Disposals (6.5) (16.4) (59.7) (82.6)
Assets classified as held for sale (2.4) (4.0) (1.1) (7.5)
Currency translation 1.1 (7.5) (9.3) (15.7)

At 31st December 2005 138.2 338.0 389.9 866.1

Accumulated depreciation
At 1st January 2005 43.7 222.1 254.1 519.9
Charge for the period (note i) 5.5 27.7 92.1 125.3
Sold subsidiaries (2.8) (12.0) (47.2) (62.0)
Disposals (3.9) (13.4) (57.0) (74.3)
Assets classified as held for sale (0.1) (2.2) (0.5) (2.8)
Currency translation 3.6 (4.8) (6.0) (7.2)

At 31st December 2005 46.0 217.4 235.5 498.9

Net book amount at 31st December 2005 92.2 120.6 154.4 367.2

Net book amount at 31st December 2004 109.4 126.4 214.1 449.9

(i) Included within the charge for the period is an impairment charge for £1.1 million (2004: nil).

Land and Plant and Hire and rental
buildings machinery inventory Total

£m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1st January 2004 159.7 334.1 487.9 981.7
Additions at cost 3.3 35.2 105.8 144.3
Acquisitions 2.8 3.0 2.5 8.3
Sold subsidiaries – (0.4) – (0.4)
Disposals (8.2) (24.4) (130.6) (163.2)
Assets classified as held for sale (5.4) (0.6) – (6.0)
Currency translation 0.9 1.6 2.6 5.1

At 31st December 2004 153.1 348.5 468.2 969.8

Accumulated depreciation
At 1st January 2004 44.6 214.1 278.5 537.2
Charge for the period 4.7 28.7 100.8 134.2
Disposals (2.8) (20.8) (127.0) (150.6)
Sold subsidiaries – (0.3) – (0.3)
Assets classified as held for sale (3.1) (0.6) – (3.7)
Currency translation 0.3 1.0 1.8 3.1

At 31st December 2004 43.7 222.1 254.1 519.9

Net book amount at 31st December 2004 109.4 126.4 214.1 449.9

Net book amount at 31st December 2003 115.1 120.0 209.4 444.5

Assets held under finance leases are plant and equipment with a net book value of £8.1 million (2004: £9.2 million) and buildings 
£1.8 million (2004: £3.1 million).

In accordance with IFRS 1, ‘First time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’, and IAS 17 ‘Leases’, the group has reviewed the
classification of all leases at the opening balance sheet date of 1st January 2004 and is satisfied that no change in classification is required.

In accordance with IFRS 1 and IAS 16 ‘Property, plant and equipment’, the group has elected to use revaluations made for property, plant and
equipment previously made under FRS 15 ‘Tangible fixed assets’ as deemed cost on the date of transition to IFRS.
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12 Investments As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Cost or valuation
At 1st January 32.5 –
Additions – 32.5
Disposal (note i) (20.5) –
Currency translation 0.5 –

At 31st December 12.5 32.5

Amounts provided
At 1st January 12.5 –
Charge for the period – 12.5

At 31st December 12.5 12.5

Net book amount at 31st December – 20.0

(i) During the period the company received payment of £20.5 million in respect of both the UK and US Vendor loan notes, which were issued as part of the sale of the HSS tool 
hire business.

A list of principal subsidiary undertakings is given on page 69. A full list of subsidiary undertakings at 31st December 2005 will be annexed to the
company’s next annual return.

13 Inventories As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Raw materials 2.9 5.4
Work in progress 2.6 4.9
Finished goods 6.8 12.0

12.3 22.3

14 Trade and other receivables As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade debtors 105.4 130.4
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables (3.3) (5.5)

102.1 124.9
Other debtors 7.2 4.5
Prepayments and accrued income 8.8 19.6

118.1 149.0

14a Cash and cash equivalents As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 37.7 73.9
Short-term bank deposits 79.9 –

117.6 73.9

15 Trade and other payables – current As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Trade payables 34.6 43.0
Other tax and social security payable 20.5 24.7
Other creditors 21.1 24.0
Accruals and deferred income 55.7 64.4

131.9 156.1
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16 Financial liabilities – borrowings As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
Current £m £m

Bank loans and overdrafts due within one year or on demand:
Unsecured 0.5 55.3

0.5 55.3
Finance lease obligations 3.2 3.3

3.7 58.6

As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
Non-current £m £m

Bank loans:
Unsecured 322.7 259.6

322.7 259.6
Finance lease obligations 5.4 6.2

328.1 265.8

Bank loans are denominated in a number of currencies and bear interest based on LIBOR or foreign equivalents appropriate to the currency in
which the borrowing is incurred.

The effective interest for the group’s bank borrowings rates (including interest rate swaps) by currency at the balance sheet date were as follows:
As at As at

31st December 31st December
2005 2004

£m % £m %

Euro 114.7 2.95 15.2 2.97
Danish krone 198.4 2.92 275.7 5.25
Swedish krona 10.1 2.04 – –
Sterling – 6.33 5.3 6.33
US Dollars – 5.53 17.6 5.53
Other – – 1.1 2.81

323.2 314.9

17 Financial instruments
The group has made use of the exemption available under IFRS 1 to apply IAS 32 and IAS 39 only from 1st January 2005 and not to restate its
prior year comparatives.

The group has concluded that there is no adjustment required on adoption of IAS 32/39 as at 1st January 2005.

Interest rate swaps The notional amount of outstanding interest rate swap contracts as at 31st December 2005 was £29.2 million 
(2004: £190.8 million).

At 31st December 2005 the fixed interest rate for the US dollar and sterling swaps were 5.53% and 6.33% respectively.

The swaps are marked to market and changes in fair value are taken to the income statement.

Hedge of net investment in foreign entity The group has Danish krone, Euro and Swedish krona borrowings which it has designated as a hedge 
of the net investments in its subsidiaries. The fair value of the borrowings as at 31st December 2005 were £323.0 million (2004: £314.9 million).
The foreign exchange gain of £7.0 million (2004: loss of £1.8 million) on translation of the borrowings into sterling has been recognised directly
within equity.

Embedded derivatives In accordance with IAS 39, ‘Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement’, the group has reviewed all contracts for
embedded derivatives that are required to be separately accounted for if they do not meet certain requirements set out in the standard, and is
satisfied that no embedded derivatives exist that have to be separately accounted for.

Fair value of borrowings As at 31st December 2005 As at 31st December 2004

Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
£m £m £m £m

Long-term borrowings (note 16) (328.1) (328.1) (265.8) (265.4)

Fair value of other financial assets and liabilities
Short-term borrowings (note 16) (3.7) (3.9) 58.6 58.9
Trade and other payables (note 15) (131.9) (131.9) (156.1) (156.1)
Trade and other receivables (note 14) 118.1 118.1 149.0 149.0
Short-term deposits (note 14a) 79.9 79.9 – –
Cash at bank and in hand (note 14a) 37.7 37.7 73.9 73.9
Provisions (note 18) (4.1) (4.1) (0.3) (0.3)
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17 Financial instruments continued
Maturity of financial liabilities As at 31st December 2005 As at 31st December 2004

Borrowings Finance leases Total Borrowings Finance leases Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Within one year 0.5 3.2 3.7 55.3 3.3 58.6
In more than one year but not more than two years 0.1 2.6 2.7 42.1 2.7 44.8
Over two years but not more than five years – 2.8 2.8 217.4 3.4 220.8
Over five years 322.6 – 322.6 0.1 0.1 0.2

323.2 8.6 331.8 314.9 9.5 324.4

Borrowing facilities The group has the following undrawn committed borrowing facilities available at 31st December and on which it incurs
commitment fees at market rates:

As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Expiring in more than two years 96.7 76.6

96.7 76.6

The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows:
As at As at

31st December 31st December
2005 2004

£m £m

Not later than one year 3.5 3.7
Later than one year but not more than five 2.8 2.9
More than five years 3.0 3.8

9.3 10.4
Future finance charges on finance leases (0.7) (0.9)

Present value of finance lease liabilities 8.6 9.5

18 Provisions Vacant 
properties Restructuring Total

£m £m £m

At 1st January 2005
Charged to the income statement 0.6 10.0 10.6
Utilised in the year – (7.3) (7.3)

At 31st December 2005 0.6 2.7 3.3

Provisions have been analysed between current and non-current as follows:
As at As at

31st December 31st December
2005 2004

£m £m

Current 3.3 –
Non-current 0.8 0.3

4.1 0.3

Vacant properties Vacant property provisions are made in respect of vacant and partly sub-let leasehold properties to the extent that the future
rental payments are expected to exceed future rental income. It is further assumed, where reasonable, that the properties will be able to be sub-let
beyond the present sub-let lease agreements. In determining the vacant property provision, the cash flows have been discounted on a pre-tax basis
using the appropriate government bond rates.

Restructuring Restructuring provisions comprise largely of employee termination payments and asset write offs, which in the ordinary course of
business would not be deemed to be impaired, in respect of the group’s German operation. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Within the £10.0 million charge for the year, £6.0 million has been classified as part of exceptional item for £7.1 million (see note 4).
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19 Deferred tax
Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using the tax rate applicable to the territory in which the
difference arises.

(a) The movement on the deferred tax account is as shown below: As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

At 1st January 21.1 20.7
Acquisitions (note 29) 0.5 0.9
Sold subsidiaries (7.7) –
Charged to income – continuing and discontinued operations 8.6 8.7
Credited to equity (4.6) (9.4)
Currency translation (0.7) 0.2

At 31st December 17.2 21.1

The balance sheet presentation shown below is after the offsetting of deferred tax balances within the same tax jurisdiction. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are only offset where there is a legally enforceable right of offset and there is an intention to settle the balances net.
Balance sheet presentation As at As at

31st December 31st December
2005 2004

£m £m

Deferred tax assets (27.9) (23.4)
Deferred tax liabilities 45.1 44.5

17.2 21.1

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of tax losses and other temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where it is
considered probable that these assets will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised as follows As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Unused tax losses 2.6 2.8

No deferred tax is recognised on the unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries. As the earnings are reinvested by the group or the timing of
dividends is controlled by the parent, no tax is expected to be payable on them in the foreseeable future. If the earnings were remitted, tax would
be payable as follows:

As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

5.2 5.0

(b) The individual movements in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, before the offsetting of balances within the same jurisdiction, are 
shown below:

Deferred tax liabilities Accelerated
tax depreciation Other Total

£m £m £m

At 1st January 2005 42.1 3.5 45.6
Acquisitions (note 29) 0.4 0.1 0.5
Sold subsidiaries (7.7) – (7.7)
Charged to income – continuing and discontinued operations 3.2 5.3 8.5
Credited to equity (0.1) (0.2) (0.3)
Currency translation (1.0) (0.1) (1.1)

At 31st December 2005 36.9 8.6 45.5

Deferred tax assets Provisions Fair value losses Tax losses Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m

At 1st January 2005 (21.9) (0.1) (0.8) (1.6) (24.4)
Charged to income – continuing and discontinued operations 1.0 – (1.4) 0.5 0.1
Credited to equity (4.3) – – – (4.3)
Currency translation 0.3 – – – 0.3

At 31st December 2005 (24.9) (0.1) (2.2) (1.1) (28.3)
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20 Called up share capital Ordinary Ordinary Aggregate 
shares B shares shares B shares value

millions millions £m £m £m

Authorised
Ordinary shares of 229,166,667 at 30 pence per share 
(2004: 275,000,000 at 25 pence per share) 229.2 – 68.8 – 68.8
206,698,691 of non-cumulative redeemable preference shares 
at 74 pence per share – 206.7 – 153.0 153.0

Allotted and fully paid
At 1st January 2005 202.8 – 50.7 – 50.7
Issue of B shares – 203.9 – 150.9 150.9
Redemption of B shares – (195.1) – (144.4) (144.4)
Consolidation of ordinary shares (34.0) – – – –
Allotted in respect of share option schemes (note i) 1.7 – 0.5 – 0.5

At 31st December 2005 170.5 8.8 51.2 6.5 57.7

(i) The exercise of employee share options resulted in the receipt of £4.9 million of which £4.4 million has been credited to the share premium account.

Shareholders approved a £150.9 million return of share capital, by way of a B share scheme, at the company’s extraordinary general meeting on
15th August 2005. Shareholders were given the option of redeeming their B shares immediately at 74 pence per B share or redeeming them in 
the future. The first dividend will be paid on 2nd May 2006 in respect of the period from and including the date following the date of issue of the
B shares to, but excluding, 30th April 2006.

On 31st August 2005, 195,110,995 B shares were redeemed at a cost of £144.4 million. As part of the return of capital the company sought and
received approval for 6 ordinary 25 pence shares to be consolidated into 5 new ordinary 30 pence shares. Trading in the new shares commenced
on 19th August 2005.

The company announced on 24th February 2006 that it intends to redeem the remaining  B shares still in issue on 2nd May 2006 (redemption
value £6.5 million). These shareholders will receive a non-cumulative preferential dividend at a rate per annum equal to 70% of six months LIBOR,
payable twice yearly in arrear on the par value of 74 pence per B share. Once all the shares have been redeemed, distributable reserves will have
decreased by £150.9 million in respect of the return of capital and £0.5 million in respect of share redemption costs.

The redemptions are shown in financing in the cash flow statement and a transfer has been made from the profit and loss account to capital
redemption reserves of £144.4 million.

Potential issues of ordinary shares Certain senior executives hold options to subscribe for shares in the company at prices ranging from 
207.65 pence to 445.75 pence under approved share option schemes. Options on 1,695,346 shares were exercised in 2005. The number 
of shares subject to options, the period in which they were granted and the periods in which they may be exercised are given below:

Not exercised at Not exercised at
31st December 31st December Price per share

2005 2004 pence

The Godfrey Davis 1987 Executive Share Option Scheme
Date of grant 11th April 1996 3,712 7,424 207.65

12th April 1996 – 40,836 207.65
The Davis 1998 Share Option Scheme
Date of grant 25th June 1998 88,220 322,496 340.04

19th April 1999 142,955 454,256 367.77
24th March 2000 74,017 228,934 251.29
20th September 2000 – 52,734 245.32
11th October 2002 217,000 458,000 291.00
10th October 2003 269,500 367,500 367.00
2nd June 2005 460,000 – 445.75

The Davis Service Group Savings Related
Share Option Scheme (‘Sharesave Scheme’)
Date of grant 10th October 2000 54,342 675,799 202.23

14th October 2002 326,340 654,963 256.00
15th October 2004 314,801 554,770 299.00

1,950,887 3,817,712
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20a Share based payments 
During the period the group had four share based payment arrangements with employees to grant share options, the details of the arrangements
are set out below:

The Davis Service Group
The Davis 1998 Executive Savings Related

Share Option Scheme Share Option Scheme

Date of grant 10th October 2003 2nd June 2005 15th October 2004 15th October 2004

Number of options originally granted 401,500 460,000 186,908 376,421
Contractual life 10 years 10 years 31⁄2 years 51⁄2 years
Exercise price (pence) 367.00 445.75 299.00 299.00
Share price at date of grant 367.00 445.75 373.00 373.00
Number of employees 60 12 112 135
Expected volatility 25% 25% 25% 25%
Expected option life 51⁄2 years 51⁄2 years 21⁄2 years 41⁄2 years
Risk free rate 4.2% 4.2% 4.2% 4.2%
Expected dividend yield 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%
Fair value per option (pence) 59.86 72.71 82.87 85.78

The group has used the Black-Scholes model to value its share options, with no vesting conditions other than time. The expected volatility for the
share option arrangements is based on historical volatility determined by the analysis of daily share price movements over the past ten years.

Share based expenses have been included within administration expenses.

A reconciliation of movements in the number of share options for the group can be summarised as follows:

The Davis 1998 Share Option Scheme
1st January

Number of shares
31st December Exercise price

2005 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2005 (pence) Exercise period

10th October 2003 367,500 –   (65,500) (32,500) 269,500 367.00 Oct 2006 – Oct 2013
2nd June 2005 –   460,000 –   –   460,000 445.75 Jun 2008 – Jun 2015

1st January
Number of shares

31st December Exercise price
2004 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2004 (pence) Exercise period

10th October 2003 401,500 – (3,000) (31,000) 367,500 367.00 Oct 2006 – Oct 2013

The Davis Service Group Savings Related Share Option Scheme

1st January
Number of shares

31st December Exercise price
2005 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2005 (pence) Exercise period

15th October 2004 186,085 –   (9,574) (78,794) 97,717 299.00 Dec 2007 – May 2008
15th October 2004 368,685 –   (9,999) (141,602) 217,084 299.00 Dec 2009 – May 2010

1st January
Number of shares

31st December Exercise price
2004 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2004 (pence) Exercise period

15th October 2004 – 186,908 – (823) 186,085 209.00 Dec 2007 – May 2008
15th October 2004 – 376,421 – (7,736) 368,685 209.00 Dec 2009 – May 2010

21 Share premium account £m

1st January 2004 236.5
Premium on shares issued during the year under the share option schemes 3.7

1st January 2005 240.2
Premium on shares issued during the year under the share option schemes 4.4
Share redemption costs (0.5)
Issue of B Shares (150.9)

31st December 2005 93.2
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22 Retained earnings account £m

1st January 2005 148.0
Profit for the year 127.1
Dividends paid (32.2)
Deferred tax arising on share options 0.3
Actuarial losses net of deferred tax (10.1)
Transfer to capital redemption reserve arising from redemption of B shares (144.4)
Currency translation (8.2)

31st December 2005 80.5

£m

1st January 2004 153.7
Profit for the year 47.0
Dividends paid (32.1)
Deferred tax arising on share options (0.2)
Actuarial losses net of deferred tax (22.4)
Currency translation 2.0

31st December 2004 148.0

Cumulative goodwill relating to acquisitions made prior to 1998, which has been eliminated against reserves, amounts to £139.5 million 
(2004: £139.5 million).

23 Other reserves Other
reserves

£m

1st January 2004 0.2
Currency translation 0.9

31st December 2004 1.1
Currency translation (0.6)

31st December 2005 0.5

24 Shareholders’ funds Capital
Share Share Other redemption Retained Minority Total

capital premium reserves reserve earnings Total interest equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1st January 2004 50.3 236.5 0.2 – 153.7 440.7 2.2 442.9 
Issue of share capital in respect 
of share option schemes 0.4 3.7 – – – 4.1 – 4.1 
Purchase of shares – – – – – – (0.8) (0.8)
Dividends – – – – (32.1) (32.1) (0.1) (32.2)
Actuarial losses net of deferred tax – – – – (22.4) (22.4) – (22.4)
Deferred tax arising on share options – – – – (0.2) (0.2) – (0.2)
Profit for the year – – – – 47.0 47.0 0.3 47.3 
Currency translation – – 0.9 – 2.0 2.9 0.1 3.0 

At 31st December 2004 50.7 240.2 1.1 – 148.0 440.0 1.7 441.7 

Issue of share capital in respect 
of share option schemes 0.5 4.4 – – – 4.9 – 4.9 
Share redemption issue costs – (0.5) – – – (0.5) – (0.5)
Issue of B shares 150.9 (150.9) – – – – – –
Redemption of B shares (144.4) – – – – (144.4) – (144.4)
Transfer to capital redemption reserve 
arising from redemption of B shares – – – 144.4 (144.4) – – –
Dividends – – – – (32.2) (32.2) – (32.2)
Actuarial losses net of deferred tax – – – – (10.1) (10.1) – (10.1)
Deferred tax arising on share options – – – – 0.3 0.3 – 0.3
Profit for the period – – – – 127.1 127.1 (0.1) 127.0
Currency translation – – (0.6) – (8.2) (8.8) (0.1) (8.9)

At 31st December 2005 57.7 93.2 0.5 144.4 80.5 376.3 1.5 377.8 
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25 Shareholders’ funds and statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
Attributable to equity holders of the company

Capital
Share Share Other redemption Retained Minority Total

capital premium reserves reserve earnings Interest equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1st January 2004 50.3 236.5 0.2 – 153.7 2.2 442.9 
Issue of share capital in respect 
of share option schemes 0.4 3.7 – – – – 4.1 
Purchase of shares – – – – – (0.8) (0.8)
Dividends – – – – (32.1) (0.1) (32.2)
Actuarial losses net of deferred tax – – – – (22.4) – (22.4)
Deferred tax arising on 
share options – – – – (0.2) – (0.2)
Profit for the year – – – – 47.0 0.3 47.3 
Currency translation – – 0.9 – 2.0 0.1 3.0 

At 31st December 2004 50.7 240.2 1.1 – 148.0 1.7 441.7 

Issue of share capital in respect 
of share option schemes 0.5 4.4 – – – – 4.9 
Share redemption issue costs – (0.5) – – – – (0.5)
Issue of B shares 150.9 (150.9) – – – –
Redemption of B shares (144.4) – – – – – (144.4)
Transfer to capital redemption reserve 
arising from redemption of B shares – – – 144.4 (144.4) – –
Dividends – – – – (32.2) – (32.2)
Actuarial losses net of deferred tax – – – – (10.1) – (10.1)
Deferred tax arising on 
share options – – – – 0.3 – 0.3 
Profit for the period – – – – 127.1 (0.1) 127.0 
Currency translation – – (0.6) – (8.2) (0.1) (8.9)

At 31st December 2005 57.7 93.2 0.5 144.4 80.5 1.5 377.8 

26 Minority interest 2005 2004
£m £m

1st January 1.7 2.2
Share of net (loss)/profit of subsidiaries (0.1) 0.3
Dividends paid – (0.1)
Purchase of shares – (0.8)
Currency translation (0.1) 0.1

31st December 1.5 1.7
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27 Cash flow from operating activities
Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities:

Total group Discontinued operations

Year to Year to Year to Year to
31st December 31st December 31st December 31st December

2005 2004 2005 2004
Cash generated from operations £m £m £m £m

Profit for the period 127.0 47.3 69.5 11.4
Adjustments for:
Taxation 24.7 30.2 1.5 3.9
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 3.0 1.5 – –
Impairment of goodwill 0.2 – – –
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 125.4 134.2 5.6 13.2
Profit on sale of property (0.3) (3.4) – (0.4)
Profit on sale of plant and equipment (0.2) (3.1) (1.3) (1.9)
(Profit)/loss on sale of business (68.0) 19.9 (68.0) –
Redemption of promissory loan notes (5.0) – – –
Finance income (6.8) (3.8) – –
Finance expense 15.0 19.4 0.8 2.4
Exchange losses on borrowings (0.1) – – –

Changes in working capital (excluding effect of acquisitions, 
disposals and exchange differences on consolidation):

Inventories (1.6) 2.9 (0.8) 3.2
Trade and other receivables 0.6 (10.4) (3.5) 2.9
Trade and other payables 2.3 (7.0) 5.6 (2.8)
Provisions 3.3 – – –

Cash generated from operations 219.5 227.7 9.4 31.9

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise: 
Year to Year to Year to Year to

31st December 31st December 31st December 31st December
2005 2004 2005 2004

£m £m £m £m

Net book amount 10.6 12.6 0.6 5.7 
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.5 6.5 1.3 2.3 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 11.1 19.1 1.9 8.0 

28 Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt Year to Year to
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Increase in cash 56.4 21.2 
Cash (outflow)/inflow from movement in debt and lease financing (27.7) 109.8 

Changes in net debt resulting from cash flows 28.7 131.0
New finance leases (3.9) (3.8)
Bank loans and lease obligations disposed/(acquired) with subsidiaries 5.4 (2.8)
Currency translation 6.1 1.8 

Movement in net debt in period 36.3 126.2
Net debt at beginning of period (250.5) (376.7)

Net debt at end of period (214.2) (250.5)

Notes to financial statements continued
52

The Davis Service Group Plc Report and Accounts 2005



29 Acquisitions and disposals
(a) Acquisitions of subsidiary undertakings During the year the group acquired Hall and Letts Ltd in the UK, the healthcare contracts from Rentokil 
Initial plc in Germany, together with a number of small textile maintenance operations, details of the carrying values and provisional fair values of
the assets and liabilities are set out below:

Carrying values Provisional 
pre-acquisition fair values

£m £m

Intangible fixed assets – 5.9 
Property, plant and equipment 6.5 6.7 
Inventories 1.2 1.4 
Receivables 4.6 4.5 
Payables (4.2) (4.2)
Taxation
– Current (0.5) (0.5)
– Deferred (0.5) (0.5)
Cash and cash equivalents 1.8 1.8 
Overdrafts (0.5) (0.5)
Bank loans (0.9) (0.9)
Lease finance obligations (0.2) (0.3)

Net assets acquired 7.3 13.4

Goodwill 9.3 

Consideration 22.7 

Consideration satisfied by:

Cash 20.0 
Deferred consideration 2.1 
Legal and professional fees 0.6 

22.7 

The fair value amounts contain some provisional amounts, due to some acquisitions being made in the last quarter of 2005, these amounts will be
finalised in the 2006 accounts.

The outflow of cash and cash equivalents on acquisition is calculated as follows:
£m

Cash consideration 20.6 
Cash acquired (1.8)
Overdrafts 0.5 

19.3 

The intangible assets acquired are customer contracts. Details of the amortisation periods for these contracts are given in note 10.

Shown below are the revenues and profit for the year after tax as if the above acquisitions had been made at the beginning of the period. 
This information is not indicative of the results of operations that would have occurred had the purchase been made at the beginning of the 
period presented or the future results of the combined operations.

2005
£m

Revenue 25.5
Profit for the year after tax 1.6

From the dates of acquisition to 31st December 2005, the above acquisitions contributed £7.5 million to revenue and £0.7 million to the profit for
the year after tax.
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29 Acquisitions and disposals continued
(b) Disposal of Elliott Group On 25th May 2005 The Davis Service Group Plc announced the completion of sale of the Elliott Group for a gross
consideration of £166 million. Details of the transaction can be found in the Finance Director’s report on page 12. The profit on disposal is
calculated as follows:

£m

Total assets carrying value 131.5
Total liabilities carrying value (35.4)

96.1
Gross consideration 166.0

Profit on disposal before expenses and curtailment gain 69.9
Transaction expenses (5.6)
Curtailment gain related to pension obligations 3.7

Profit on disposal 68.0

(c) Post balance sheet events The group has made a number of small textile maintenance acquisitions since 31st December 2005 amounting to
£19.7 million.

30 Employees and directors
Staff costs for the group during the year:

Year to Year to
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Wages and salaries 241.6 252.9
Social security costs 33.2 34.8
Other pension costs 6.5 8.2

281.3 295.9

Average number of people (including executive directors) employed 2005 2004
Number Number

By business group
Textile maintenance – UK and Ireland 7,871 7,961
Textile maintenance – Continent 6,997 7,380
Other activities 26 25

14,894 15,366
Building systems – 1,512

14,894 16,878

Directors Year to Year to
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Aggregate emoluments 1.2 2.1
Aggregate gains made on exercise of share options 0.3 0.1
Company contribution to money purchase pension schemes 0.1 0.1

1.6 2.3

Details of accrued retirement benefits for directors can be found with the report on directors’ remuneration tables on page 20.

31 Pension commitments
Defined contribution schemes Pension costs for defined contribution schemes are as follows:

Year to Year to
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Defined contribution schemes (note i) 4.8 6.1

(i) Total included within staff costs (note 30).

Defined benefit plans Within the United Kingdom, the group principally operates an approved defined benefit scheme (The Davis Service Group
Retirement Benefits Scheme). The group has also established stakeholder arrangements on behalf of its UK employees.

Overseas, the only significant pension arrangements are the defined benefit schemes operated in Ireland and unfunded schemes within Sweden,
Germany and Norway. Under such schemes the group discharges its pension obligations through actuarially determined contributions 
to schemes administered by insurance companies or government agencies.
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31 Pension commitments continued
Where a defined benefit scheme is administered by an insurance company with a collective of other companies the insurance company is unable
to assess the share of the group’s pension obligation, the pension scheme has been accounted for as a defined contribution scheme.

The actuarial valuations of the principal scheme, together with eight other defined benefit schemes operated by the group have each been
updated as at 31st December 2005 by qualified actuaries using revised assumptions that are consistent with the requirements of IAS 19. 
The principal assumptions made by the actuaries were:

2005 2004
% %

Rate of increase in pensionable salaries 3.7 3.9
Rate of increase in pensions in payment and deferred pensions 2.7 2.9
Discount rate 4.8 5.5
Inflation rate 2.7 2.9
Expected return on plan assets
– Equities 7.5 7.8
– Bonds 4.9 4.9

The actuarial valuation also assumes that mortality will be in line with nationally published PMA92 and PFA92 mortality tables incorporating
projected improvements to life expectancy to 2000 (current pensioners) and 2020 (non-retired members). This is based on the actuary’s best
estimate of mortality within the scheme.

As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are determined as follows:
Present value of obligations (219.6) (184.4)
Fair value of plan assets 162.4 113.2

Net liability recognised in balance sheet (57.2) (71.2)

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets are as follows:
2005 2004

% %

European equities 42 58
North American equities 10 8
Asia Pacific equities 11 2
European bonds 19 6
North American bonds – 3
Asia Pacific bonds – 1
European gilts 18 22

100 100

Year to Year to
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:
Current service cost 3.4 3.6
Interest cost 10.0 8.5
Expected return on plan assets (7.8) (6.4)
Curtailment (3.9) (3.6)

Total included within staff costs (note 30) 1.7 2.1

As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Present value of obligation as at 1st January 184.4 144.2
Service cost 3.4 3.6
Interest cost 10.0 8.5
Curtailment gain (3.9) (3.6)
Actuarial losses 32.0 35.0
Benefits paid (5.5) (3.4)
Currency translation (0.8) 0.1

Present value of obligations at 31st December 219.6 184.4
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31 Pension commitments continued As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Changes in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:
Fair value of plan assets as at 1st January 113.2 101.7
Expected return on plan assets 7.8 6.4
Special contributions 23.0 –
Contributions 1.0 2.2
Actuarial gains 17.6 2.9
Currency translation (0.2) –

Fair value of plan assets at 31st December 162.4 113.2

As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Analysis of the movement in the balance sheet liability
1st January (71.2) (42.5)
Total expense as above (1.7) (2.1)
Actuarial losses recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense (14.4) (32.0)
Special contributions paid 23.0 –
Contributions paid 6.5 5.6
Currency translation 0.6 (0.2)

31st December (57.2) (71.2)

Cumulative actuarial gains and losses recognised in equity
As at As at

31st December 31st December
2005 2004

£m £m

1st January (74.5) (42.5)
Net actuarial losses recognised in the year (14.4) (32.0)

(88.9) (74.5)

The actual return on plan assets was £28.8 million (2004: £10.9 million).

History of experience gains and losses As at As at
2005 2004

31st December 31st December

Experience adjustments arising on scheme assets:
Amount (£m) 17.6 2.9
Percentage of scheme assets 31% 4%

Experience adjustments arising on scheme liabilities:
Amount (£m) 32.0 35.0
Percentage of scheme assets 20% 31%

Present value of obligations (£m) (219.6) (184.4)
Fair value of plan assets (£m) 162.4 113.2

Net liability recognised in balance sheet (£m) (57.2) (71.2)

The group’s pension liability, net of deferred tax is £40.4 million, further the group expects to make contribution payments of at least £5m 
during 2006.

Notes to financial statements continued
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32 Operating lease commitments – minimum lease payments 2005 2004

Vehicles, plant Vehicles, plant 
Property and equipment Property and equipment

£m £m £m £m

Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases expiring:
Within one year 4.1 2.4 3.7 2.6
Later than one year and less than five years 10.5 7.9 13.0 6.0
After five years 10.7 0.1 10.3 1.3

25.3 10.4 27.0 9.9

The group leases various offices and warehouses under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases have various terms, escalation
clauses and renewal rights.

33 Capital and other financial commitments As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Contracts placed for future capital expenditure not provided in the financial statements 3.4 5.3

34 Reconciliation of net assets and profit under UK GAAP to IFRS
The Davis Service Group Plc reported under UK generally accepted accounting principles (UK GAAP) in its previously published financial statements
for the year ended 31st December 2004. The analysis below shows a reconciliation of net assets and profit as reported under UK GAAP as at 31st
December 2004 to the revised net assets and profit under IFRS as reported in these financial statements.

(a) Reconciliation of consolidated profit and loss account for the 12 months ending 31st December 2004
UK GAAP

as previously
reported Impact of

(reformatted for transition to Restated
IFRS purposes) IFRS under IFRS

£m £m £m

Continuing operations
Revenue 797.7 – 797.7
Cost of sales (440.6) – (440.6)

Gross profit 357.1 – 357.1
Other operating income 7.6 – 7.6
Distribution costs (139.9) (0.1) (140.0)
Administrative expenses (112.2) 1.9 (110.3)
Other operating expenses (20.5) 18.8 (1.7)

Operating profit 92.1 20.6 112.7
Analysed as:
Operating profit before goodwill amortisation and exceptional items 108.1 0.2 108.3
Goodwill amortisation (20.4) 20.4 –
Exceptional items 4.4 – 4.4
Operating profit 92.1 20.6 112.7
Finance expense (19.4) – (19.4)
Finance income 3.8 – 3.8

Profit before taxation 76.5 20.6 97.1
Taxation (27.3) (2.2) (29.5)

Profit for the year from continuing operations 49.2 18.4 67.6
Discontinued operations
Loss on sale of discontinued operation (22.8) 2.5 (20.3)

Profit for the year 26.4 20.9 47.3

Profit attributable to minority interest 0.3 – 0.3
Profit attributable to equity shareholders 26.1 20.9 47.0

26.4 20.9 47.3

Earnings per share expressed in pence per share
– Basic 12.9 10.3 23.2 
– Diluted 12.9 10.3 23.2
Earnings per share from continuing operations
– Basic 24.4 8.9 33.3 
– Diluted 24.2 8.9 33.1 
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34 Reconciliation of net assets and profit under UK GAAP to IFRS continued
(b) Reconciliation of consolidated equity as at 31st December 2004 UK GAAP

as previously
reported Impact of

(reformatted for transition to Restated
IFRS purposes) IFRS under IFRS

£m £m £m

Assets
Intangible assets 276.5 28.3 304.8
Property, plant and equipment 458.8 (8.9) 449.9
Investments 20.0 – 20.0
Assets classified as held for sale – 1.4 1.4
Deferred tax assets 0.4 23.0 23.4

Total non-current assets 755.7 43.8 799.5

Inventories 22.3 – 22.3
Income tax receivable 2.3 – 2.3
Trade and other receivables 149.0 – 149.0
Cash and cash equivalents 73.9 – 73.9

Total current assets 247.5 – 247.5

Liabilities
Bank overdrafts 12.2 – 12.2
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 46.4 – 46.4
Income tax payable 8.8 – 8.8
Trade and other payables 131.1 (39.4) 91.7
Accruals and deferred income 65.5 (1.1) 64.4

Total current liabilities 264.0 (40.5) 223.5

Net current (liabilities)/assets (16.5) 40.5 24.0

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 265.8 – 265.8
Retirement benefit obligations – 71.2 71.2
Other payables 8.0 (7.7) 0.3
Deferred tax liabilities 29.5 15.0 44.5

Total non-current liabilities 303.3 78.5 381.8

Net assets 435.9 5.8 441.7

Equity
Share capital 50.7 – 50.7
Share premium 240.2 – 240.2
Other reserves 19.6 (18.5) 1.1
Retained earnings 123.7 24.3 148.0

Total shareholders’ equity 434.2 5.8 440.0
Minority interest in equity 1.7 – 1.7

Total equity 435.9 5.8 441.7

Notes to financial statements continued
58

The Davis Service Group Plc Report and Accounts 2005



34 Reconciliation of net assets and profit under UK GAAP to IFRS continued
(c) Reconciliation of consolidated equity as at 1st January 2004 UK GAAP

as previously
reported Impact of

(reformatted for transition to Restated
IFRS purposes) IFRS under IFRS

£m £m £m

Assets
Intangible assets 290.6 4.6 295.2
Property, plant and equipment 561.0 (116.5) 444.5
Assets classified as held for sale – 170.6 170.6
Deferred tax assets 8.6 11.4 20.0

Total non-current assets 860.2 70.1 930.3

Inventories 28.6 (2.8) 25.8
Income tax receivable 5.8 3.7 9.5
Trade and other receivables 176.6 (55.6) 121.0
Cash and cash equivalents 50.9 – 50.9

Current assets 261.9 (54.7) 207.2

Liabilities
Bank overdrafts 12.7 – 12.7
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 89.1 (0.4) 88.7
Income tax payable 7.4 2.8 10.2
Trade and other payables 132.2 (65.5) 66.7
Accruals and deferred income 74.7 (8.9) 65.8

Total current liabilities 316.1 (72.0) 244.1
Non-current liabilities classified as held for sale – 41.7 41.7

Net current liabilities (54.2) (24.4) (78.6)

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 325.8 (0.2) 325.6
Retirement benefit obligations – 42.5 42.5
Other payables 7.3 (7.3) –
Deferred tax liabilities 34.7 6.0 40.7

Total non-current liabilities 367.8 41.0 408.8

Net assets 438.2 4.7 442.9

Equity
Share capital 50.3 – 50.3
Share premium 236.5 – 236.5
Other reserves 18.8 (18.6) 0.2
Retained earnings 130.4 23.3 153.7

Total shareholders’ equity 436.0 4.7 440.7
Minority interest in equity 2.2 – 2.2

Total equity 438.2 4.7 442.9
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34 Reconciliation of net assets and profit under UK GAAP to IFRS continued
Explanation of reconciling items between UK GAAP and IFRS: The following sets out significant accounting policy changes and adjustments arising
from the transition to IFRS.

(i) Presentation of financial results and information The format of the IFRS financial statements has been presented in accordance with IAS 1
‘Presentation of Financial Statements’, which differs from its UK GAAP equivalents. In particular there is no equivalent to FRS 3 ‘Reporting Financial
Performance’ in IFRS. Under IFRS non-operating exceptional items will be reported as part of a single measure of operating profit on the face of the
income statement. However the group will continue to disclose an adjusted earnings per share in the notes to the financial statements to reflect
earnings per share before one-off items.

(ii) Business combinations, goodwill and intangible assets IFRS 3 ‘Business combinations’ requires that goodwill arising from business combinations
should not be amortised and will be tested annually for impairment. Further, certain intangible assets, previously subsumed within goodwill under
UK GAAP, are now required to be recognised separately and amortised over their estimated useful life.

The group has elected not to restate previous business combinations as permitted by IFRS 1 ‘First time adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards’. However, acquisition accounting for acquisitions made during 2004 have been restated in accordance with IFRS 3 and IAS 38
‘Intangible Assets’, which has resulted in the recognition of certain intangible assets relating to customer contracts and lists and intellectual
property rights. 

These intangible assets are being amortised over their estimated useful life. In the case of customer contracts this relates to the period over which
the company expects to benefit from the contracts, between 2 and 5 years. As a result, amortisation relating to goodwill on the balance sheet at
the date of transition (net of the amortisation charged on intangible assets) has been reversed, resulting in a net credit to the income statement of
£19.8m for the year ended 31st December 2004.

Under IAS 38 ‘Intangible assets’, certain assets, primarily computer software have been reclassified from property, plant and equipment to intangible.

(iii) Post employment benefits Under IFRS the group will reflect the fair value of pension obligations and related pension fund assets in its balance
sheet and recognise previously unprovided pension liabilities and deficits. These were not required under UK GAAP, SSAP 24 ‘Accounting for
pension costs’ where actuarial deficits are amortised over a number of years to the income statement. The retirement obligation liability, in
accordance with IAS 19 ‘Employee benefits’, is £71.2m and £42.5m the period ending 31st December 2004 and 2003 respectively.

Of the £71.2m net retirement obligation liability arising as at 31st December 2004, the group had already provided for £24.2m in its 2004 Annual
Report and Accounts (under UK GAAP), leaving an unprovided amount of £47.0m.

IAS 19 is very close to the valuation basis of FRS17 ‘Retirement benefits’ previously disclosed in our accounts. The unprovided FRS 17 pension
deficit disclosed in the group’s Annual Report and Accounts for 2004 was £46.2m (note 8), with the variation in the pension liabilities between 
IAS 19 and FRS 17 arising due to a change in assumptions in the Irish defined benefit scheme to conform more closely to the rest of the group.

The group’s pension charge, based on IAS 19, has been reduced by £0.9m for the year ended 31st December 2004 compared with the amount
previously recorded under SSAP 24. 

Under IFRS, changes in pension deficits or surpluses resulting from actuarial experience are charged to equity and separately disclosed in the
Statement of Recognised Income and Expense. The triennial valuation of the RBS fund in 2004 resulted in a charge to equity of £30.2m.

(iv) Deferred and current taxes The scope of IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ is considerably wider than its UK GAAP equivalent FRS 19 ‘Deferred taxes’, 
and requires deferred tax to be provided on all temporary differences (i.e. differences between tax and accounting carrying values) rather than on
certain taxable timing differences, which impact differences in the recognition of items in the income statement for accounting and tax purposes,
under UK GAAP.

The principal areas of impact are on revalued properties and rolled over gains on the sale of properties which now require tax effecting in the
period of sale rather than when they are ultimately realised. 

(v) Share based payments IFRS 2 ‘Share-based payments’ requires that an expense for grants of equity instruments is recognised at fair value at 
the date of grant. The group has taken the exemption under IFRS 1, not to apply IFRS 2 to grants made before 7th November 2002. This expense,
which is in relation to share options schemes, is recognised over the vesting period of the relevant scheme. The group has adopted the 
Black-Scholes pricing model for the purposes of computing fair value under IFRS.

The additional pre-tax expense from the adoption of IFRS 2 on the group’s consolidated income statement is £0.1m for the year ended 
31st December 2004.

(vi) Post balance sheet events IAS 10 ‘Events after the Balance Sheet Date’ requires that dividends declared after the balance sheet date should 
not be recognised as a liability at that balance sheet date as the liability does not represent a present obligation as defined by IAS 37 ‘Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’.

The final dividend in respect of the year ended 31st December 2004 of £23.0m has been reversed in the IFRS balance sheet as at 31st December
2004 and will be charged in the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the year ending 31st December 2005.

(vii) Non current assets held for sale In 2003, the group announced the sale HSS, its tool hire division, which completed in January 2004. 
Under IFRS 5, ‘non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations’, the assets and liabilities held for sale have been disclosed and
presented separately from other assets and liabilities in the group’s consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2003. 

Further, UK GAAP required that £18.6m of goodwill previously written off directly to reserves be recycled to the income statement in calculating
the gain on sale of HSS. This is not required under IFRS.

The group has further reclassified properties as ‘held for sale’ as at 31st December 2004. These assets have also been disclosed and presented
separately from other assets and liabilities in the group’s consolidated balance sheet as at 31st December 2004.

(viii) Financial instruments IAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation’ and IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement’ addresses the accounting and reporting of financial instruments. We have taken the IFRS 1 exemption not to apply IAS 32 and 
IAS 39 to our comparative period, therefore this will be applicable for the first time for the year ending 31st December 2005. The introduction of 
this standard will require the group to document all of its hedging relationships, should it seek to qualify for hedge accounting.

There is no impact on the group’s net assets had it elected to adopt IAS 32/39 at 1st January 2004.

(ix) Upon transition to IFRS there has been no impact on the group’s cashflow.

Notes to financial statements continued
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35 Parent company profit and loss account
As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the company has not presented its own profit and loss account. The profit for the year
ended 31st December 2005 dealt with in the accounts of the company was £66.7 million (2004: loss of £53.1 million), after taking into account 
of dividends received from subsidiaries of £44.3 million (2004: £17.3 million).

36 Company balance sheet
As at As at

31st December 31st December
2005 2004

Notes £m £m

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 38 0.2 0.4
Investments 39 616.8 719.1

617.0 719.5
Current assets
Debtors 40 137.8 151.6
Cash at bank and in hand 89.7 47.5

227.5 199.1
Creditors:
Amounts falling due within one year 41 54.8 91.4

Net current assets 172.7 107.7

Total assets less current liabilities 789.7 827.2
Creditors:
Amounts falling due after more than one year 42 433.5 386.9

Net assets 356.2 440.3

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 43 57.7 50.7
Share premium account 44 93.2 240.2
Other reserves 44 21.1 21.1
Capital redemption reserve 44 144.4 –
Profit and loss account 44 39.8 128.3

Equity shareholders’ funds 45 356.2 440.3

The financial statements on pages 61 to 66 were approved by the board and signed on its behalf.

I Roger Dye Director

Kevin Quinn Director

24th February 2006

The following parent entity financial statements are prepared under UK GAAP and relates to the company and not to the group,
the statement of accounting policies which have been applied to these accounts can be found on page 66 and a separate
independent auditors’ report on page 67.
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37 Taxation on profit on ordinary activities
(a) Analysis of charge for the year As at

As at 31st December
31st December 2004

2005 £m
£m (restated)

Current tax:
UK corporation tax on profits for the period (3.2) (3.2)
Adjustments in respect of previous periods 0.1 –

Total current tax (see note 37b) (3.1) (3.2)
Deferred tax:
Origination and timing differences 1.9 1.3

Tax on profit on ordinary activities (1.2) (1.9)

(b) Factors affecting the current tax charge for the year The current charge for the period is different from the standard rate of corporation tax in
the UK. The difference is explained below:

Year to
Year to 31st December

31st December 2004
2005 £m

£m (restated)

Profit on ordinary activities before tax: 53.3 (9.8)

Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of UK corporation tax rate of 30% (2004: 30%) 16.0 (2.9)
Effect of:
Differences between capital allowances and depreciation
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 0.1 –
Timing differences (2.1) (0.3)
Differences between chargeable gains and profit and loss on disposal (17.2) –
Adjustment in respect of prior years 0.1 –

Current tax credit for the period (3.1) (3.2)

(c) Deferred taxation As at
As at 31st December

31st December 2004
2005 £m

£m (restated)

Deferred tax comprises:
Excess of tax allowances over depreciation 0.1 0.1
Relating to retirement benefit obligations 17.7 16.7

17.8 16.8

Movement during the period:
At 1st January as previously reported 4.0 –
Prior year adjustment – FRS 17 12.8 9.0

At 1st January as restated 16.8 9.0
Amount charged to profit and loss account (1.9) (1.3)
Amount credited to equity 2.9 9.1

17.8 16.8

Parent company financial statements
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38 Tangible fixed assets Short Plant and
leasehold machinery
property owned Total

£m £m £m

Cost:
At 1st January 2005 0.3 0.6 0.9
Additions –  0.2 0.2
Disposals –  (0.3) (0.3)

At 31st December 2005 0.3 0.5 0.8

Depreciation:
At 1st January 2005 0.2 0.3 0.5
Charge –  0.1 0.1
Disposals –  – –

At 31st December 2005 0.2 0.4 0.6

Net book value:
As at 31st December 2005 0.1 0.1 0.2

As at 31st December 2004 0.1 0.3 0.4

39 Fixed asset investments Interests
in group Other

undertakings investments Total
£m £m £m

Cost or valuation
At 1st January 2005 700.1 32.5 732.1
Additions (note i) (1.0) –  (1.0)
Disposal of subsidiary (note ii) (65.7) –  (65.7)
Amount received (note iii) – (20.5) (20.5)
Currency translation (15.6) 0.5 (15.1)

At 31st December 2005 617.8 12.5 629.8

Amounts provided
At 1st January 2005 1.0 12.5 13.0

At 31st December 2005 1.0 12.5 13.0

Net book amount:
As at 31st December 2005 616.8 – 616.8

As at 31st December 2004 699.1 20.0 719.1

(i) During the year there was a variation in value in respect of an investment in subsidiary originally acquired in 2004.
(ii) The company divested its investment in the Elliott Group on 25th May 2005.
(iii) During the year the company received payment of £20.5 million in respect of both the UK and US vendor loan notes, which were issued as part of the sale of the HSS tool hire business.

40 Debtors As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Amounts falling due within one year:
Due from subsidiaries 0.5 8.6
Other debtors 1.1 0.5
Prepayments and accrued income 0.4 1.3
Taxation recoverable 1.9 1.5
Deferred tax asset 2.4 2.0

6.3 13.9
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Due from subsidiaries 116.1 122.9
Deferred tax asset 15.4 14.8

137.8 151.6
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41 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Bank overdrafts 45.9 41.2
Bank loans – 37.9
Trade creditors 0.1 0.1
Amounts owed to group undertakings 2.3 3.7
Other creditors 4.0 2.4
Other taxes and social security 0.5 0.4
Accruals and deferred income 2.0 5.7

54.8 91.4

42 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year As at As at 
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Bank loans 322.5 259.2 
Amounts owed to group undertakings 70.3 71.9 
Retirement benefit obligations 40.7 55.8 

433.5 386.9 

43 Called up share capital Ordinary Ordinary Aggregate 
shares B shares shares B shares value

millions millions £m £m £m

Authorised
Ordinary shares of 229,166,667 at 30 pence per share
(2004: 275,000,000 at 25 pence per share) 229.2 – 68.8 – 68.8
206,698,691 of non-cumulative redeemable preference shares
at 74 pence per share – 206.7 – 153.0 153.0

Allotted and fully paid
At 1st January 2005 202.8 – 50.7 – 50.7
Issue of B shares – 203.9 – 150.9 150.9
Redemption of B shares – (195.1) – (144.4) (144.4)
Consolidation of ordinary shares (34.0) – – – –
Allotted in respect of share option schemes 1.7 – 0.5 – 0.5

At 31st December 2005 170.5 8.8 51.2 6.5 57.7

(i) The exercise of employee share options resulted in the receipt of £4.9 million of which £4.4 million has been credited to the share premium account.

44 Reserves Share Capital
premium Other redemption Profit and 
account reserve reserve loss account Total

£m £m £m £m £m

At 1st January 2005 240.2 21.1 –  140.8 402.1
Prior year adjustment –  –  –  (12.5) (12.5)

Restated opening balance 240.2 21.1 –  128.3 389.6 
Issue of share capital in respect of share options schemes 4.4 –  –  –  4.4
Issue of B shares (150.9) – – (150.9)
Actuarial loss recognised in pension scheme net of deferred tax –  –  –  (6.8) (6.8)
Share redemption costs (0.5) –  –  –  (0.5)
Transfer to capital redemption reserve arising from 
redemption of B shares – – 144.4 (144.4) –
Net dividends received – – – 12.1 12.1
Profit for the financial period –  –  –  54.5 54.5
Currency translation –  –  –  (3.9) (3.9)

At 31st December 2005 93.2 21.1 144.4 39.8 298.5

Parent company financial statements
Notes to financial statements continued
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45 Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds 2005 2004
£m £m

Profit/(loss) for the period 54.5 (59.7)
Net dividends received 12.1 6.5
Currency translation (3.9) (1.0)
Actuarial loss recognised in pension scheme net of deferred tax (6.8) (21.1)
Share redemption costs (0.5) –  
Share redemption (144.4) –
Issue of share capital in respect of share option schemes 4.9 4.1

Net addition to shareholders’ funds (84.1) (71.2)
Shareholders’ funds as at 1st January 452.8 523.0
Prior year adjustment (12.5) (11.5)

Restated shareholders’ funds as at 1st January 440.3 511.5

Shareholders’ funds as at 31st December 356.2 440.3

46 Contingent liabilities
The company has guaranteed the liabilities of its subsidiaries, Spring Grove Ireland Limited, Spring Grove Services Limited and Steri-Tex Limited
pursuant to Section 17 of the Irish, Companies (Amendment) Act, 1986.

47 Guarantees and other financial commitments 2005 2004

Land and Land and
buildings Other buildings Other

£m £m £m £m

Lease commitments
As at 31st December 2005 annual commitments under non-cancellable 
operating leases comprise those which expire as follows:
Within one year – – – –
Within two to five years 0.3 – – –
Over five years 0.1 – 0.4 –  

0.4 – 0.4 –  

48 Maturity analysis of borrowings and overdrafts As at As at
31st December 31st December

2005 2004
£m £m

Within one year – bank 45.9 79.1
Within one to two years – bank – 41.9
Within two to five years – bank – 217.3
Over five years – bank 322.5 –

368.4 338.3



These financial statements for the parent company are prepared on the going concern basis, under the historical cost convention and in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and applicable accounting standards in the United Kingdom. The principal accounting policies, 
which have been applied consistently, are set out below.

Change in accounting policies
The company has adopted FRS 17 ‘Retirement benefits’ which, in general, requires the company to recognise its share of the actuarial valuation 
for the defined benefit scheme operated by The Davis Service Group Plc. This is a change from the previous approach permitted by SSAP 24
‘Accounting for pension costs’ applied by the company in previous years. The cumulative effect of this change in accounting policy relating to
previous years has been recognised in the financial statements as a prior year adjustment. The effect has been to reduce distributable reserves 
by £29.6 million in 2004 and £9.7 million in 2005. Details of the deferred tax effect of adopting FRS 17, including the impact on the comparative
figures, are given in note 37c.

The company has adopted FRS 20 ‘Accounting for share based payments’ which requires the company to recognise an expense in relation to
awarded share options to employees. The cumulative effect of this change in accounting policy relating to previous years has been recognised in
the financial statements as a prior year adjustment, the effect of which is minimal to these financial statements.

Fixed assets
Land and buildings are shown at original historical cost or subsequent valuation. Other fixed assets are shown at cost.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost or valuation, less estimated residual value, of each asset on a straight line basis 
over its expected useful life, as follows:

Straight line
%

Plant and machinery 10 – 50
Motor vehicles 25

Investments
Investments are stated at cost less provision for impairment.

Deferred taxation 
Deferred taxation is provided on a full provision basis, without discounting, on all timing differences which have arisen but not reversed at the
balance sheet date. Except where otherwise required by Accounting Standards, no timing differences are recognised in respect of:

(a) Property revaluation surpluses where there is no commitment to sell the asset;

(b) Gains on sale of assets where those gains have been rolled over into replacement assets;

(c) Additional tax which would arise if profits of overseas subsidiaries were distributed, and

(d) Deferred tax assets except to the extent that it is more likely than not that they will be recovered.

Pension costs 
It is the policy of the company to fund defined pension liabilities, on the advice of external actuaries, by payments to schemes controlled by
independent trustees. Pension costs are charged against profits on a systematic basis over the service lives of the eligible employees, based on
payroll, actuarial methods and assumptions, in accordance with the actuaries’ advice. The costs of defined contribution schemes or pension
arrangements of a similar nature are charged against income as contributions become payable to the relevant scheme or arrangement.

The company’s pension cost charged to the profit and loss account is in accordance with FRS17 – ‘Retirement Benefits’. 

The FRS 17 valuation has been carried out at mid-market price.

Derivatives and other financial instruments
Interest expense reflects the underlying cost of borrowing arising from interest rate swaps. Net payments and receipts under interest rate swap
contracts are accrued over the period to which they relate and added to or credited against interest expense. No accounting entries are required 
for the principal amount of interest rate swaps as it is purely a notional figure and does not represent an asset, a liability or a contingency.

Employee share schemes
In accordance with the FRS 20 ‘Accounting for share based payments’, an expense is recognised in the profit and loss account for the award to
employees of shares in the company’s UK Inland Revenue approved Sharesave Scheme.

Cash flow statement and related party disclosures
The parent company is included in the consolidated financial statements, which are publicly available (see note 17). Consequently, the company 
has taken advantage of the exemption from preparing a cash flow statement under the terms of the FRS 1 (revised 1996).

The company is also exempt under the terms of the FRS 8 from disclosing related party transactions with entities that are part of 
The Davis Service Group Plc or investees of The Davis Service Group Plc.
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We have audited the parent company financial statements of The Davis Service Group Plc (‘the Company’) for the year ended 31st December 2005
which comprise the company balance sheet and the related notes 35 to 48 and the share option information set out in note 20a. These parent
company financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein. We have also audited the information in the
report on directors’ remuneration that is described as having been audited.

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of The Davis Service Group Plc for the year ended 31st December 2005.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’ remuneration report and the parent company financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out
in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the parent company financial statements and the part of the report on directors’ remuneration to be audited in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). This report, including the
opinion, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and
for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this
report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the parent company
financial statements and the part of the report on directors’ remuneration to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the Directors’ report is not consistent with the parent company financial statements,
if the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if
information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited parent company financial
statements. The other information comprises only the Directors’ report, the unaudited part of the report on directors’ remuneration, the corporate
governance statement, the Chairman’s statement and the Operating review and the Financial review. We consider the implications for our report if
we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the parent company financial statements. Our responsibilities do
not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the parent company financial statements and the 
part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the parent company financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration
report to be audited are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’
remuneration report to be audited.

Opinion
In our opinion:
• the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,

of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31st December 2005; and
• the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited have been properly prepared in

accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London
24th February 2006

Independent auditors’ report for the parent company
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2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
£m £m £m £m £m

Continuing operations
Revenue 661.7 651.5 657.7 494.7 238.7

Operating profit 87.9 94.4 74.2 66.3 36.2
Analysed as:
Operating profit before exceptional items and 
amortisation of customer contracts 91.7 91.0 83.5 64.4 35.7
Exceptional items (1.8) 4.0 (8.7) 2.5 0.8
Amortisation of customer contracts (2.0) (0.6) (0.6) (0.6) (0.3)
Operating profit 87.9 94.4 74.2 66.3 36.2
Finance expense (14.5) (17.0) (20.9) (14.2) (2.7)
Finance income 7.3 3.7 2.6 1.3 0.7

Profit before taxation 80.7 81.1 55.9 53.4 34.2
Taxation (23.2) (25.4) (8.4) (14.0) (7.9)

Profit for the period from continuing operations 57.5 55.7 47.5 39.4 26.3

Discontinued operations
Profit for the period from discontinued operations 2.6 11.9 12.9 19.8 24.9
Profit/(loss) on sale of discontinued operations 66.9 (20.3) (0.1) – –

Profit for the period from discontinued operations 69.5 (8.4) 12.8 19.8 24.9

Profit for the year 127.0 47.3 60.3 59.2 51.2

(Loss)/profit attributable to minority interest (0.1) 0.3 0.4 0.3 –
Profit attributable to equity shareholders 127.1 47.0 59.9 58.9 51.2

127.0 47.3 60.3 59.2 51.2

Shareholders’ funds 376.3 440.0 476.2 412.2 236.0

Earnings per share expressed in pence per share
– Basic 66.8 23.3 29.9 31.2 31.1
– Adjusted 33.1 31.9 29.9 30.3 30.2
Dividend per ordinary share expressed in pence 17.3 16.5 15.6 14.9 14.1
Dividend times covered – on profit attributable to equity shareholders 3.9 1.4 1.9 2.1 2.2

– on adjusted earnings 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1

The five year record has been restated to reflect the IFRS adjustments applicable to the group.
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UK and Eire
Our Sunlight business is a market leader serving hotels and restaurants, 
healthcare, commerce and the public sector, with flat linens and garments. 
It operates through 44 plants with 7,800 employees.

£268.4m
Revenue (2004: £263.3m)

£34.3m
Operating profit* (2004: £38.4m)

12.8%
Operating margin (2004: 14.6%)
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2005 Financial summary

Operations 2006 priorities

Markets

2

1

1. UK

2. Eire

Hotels and restaurants

Industry and commerce

Healthcare

Public sector

Management of current market volatility

Target pricing opportunities to offset cost increases

Maintain programme of operational improvements

Continue programme of bolt-on acquisitions

Investors

69 Principal subsidiary
undertakings 

69 Advisers 
69 Financial calendar 
69 Shareholder information
69 Website 

*Before exceptional items and amortisation of 
 customer contracts

Operating profit* £m

2001 37.5

2002 40.9

2003 38.4

2004 38.4

2005 34.3

Company Country of incorporation

UK and Ireland
The Sunlight Service Group Limited* England
Spring Grove Services Limited Republic of Ireland
Davis Finance Limited* England

Continental Europe
Sophus Berendsen A/S Denmark
Berendsen Textil Service A/S* Denmark
Berendsen Tekstil Service AS Norway
Berendsen Textil Service AB Sweden
Berendsen Safety AB Sweden
Berendsen Beteiligungs GmbH Germany
Berendsen Textiel Service BV The Netherlands
Berendsen Textile Service Sp.z.o.o. Poland
Modeluxe Linge Service SA France
S Berendsen OY Finland

*Owned directly by The Davis Service Group Plc

All principal subsidiary undertakings are 100% consolidated.
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Principal subsidiary undertakings

Investment Bankers Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein
Stockbrokers Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein
Solicitors Slaughter and May, London
Auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, London
Registrars Lloyds TSB Registrars, The Causeway, Worthing, West Sussex BN99 6DA

Enquiries relating to shareholders, such as queries concerning notification of change of address, dividend payments and lost share certificates,
should be made to the company’s registrars. The company has a share account, management and dealing facility for all shareholders via Lloyds TSB
Registrars Shareview. This offers shareholders secure access to their account details held on the share register to amend address information and
payment instructions directly, as well as providing a simple and convenient way of buying and selling the company’s ordinary shares. For internet
services visit www.shareview.co.uk or the investor relations sections of the company’s website. The Shareview Dealing service is also available by
telephone on 0870 850 0852 between 8.30 am and 4.30 pm Monday to Friday.

The best way to ensure that dividends are received as quickly as possible is to instruct the company’s registrars to pay them directly into a bank 
or building society account; tax vouchers are then mailed to shareholders separately. Dividend mandate forms are available from the registrars. 
This method also avoids the risk of dividend cheques being delayed or lost in the post.

Advisers

Shareholder information

Financial information about the company including the Annual and Interim reports, public announcements and share price data are available 
from the company’s website at www.dsgplc.co.uk, which also contains further information about the group and links into the websites of 
its subsidiaries:

Sunlight Service Group www.sunlight.co.uk
Sophus Berendsen www.berendsen.com

Website

Interim results announced September

Final results announced February

Ordinary interim dividend paid October

Ordinary final dividend paid May

Annual general meeting 25th April 2006

Financial calendar
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